
19.0928.04000 FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council

02/05/2019

Amendment to: Engrossed HB 1477

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds

Revenues

Expenditures

Appropriations

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political  
subdivision.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

Counties

Cities

School Districts

Townships

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

Engrossed HB 1477 prohibits the sale of flavored e-liquid to minors.

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal  
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

Section 1 of engrossed HB 1477 prohibits the sale to minors of flavored liquid for use in electronic smoking devices. 
It also imposes a fine of $500 per package of product on a violating retailer.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

If enacted, engrossed HB 1477 may result in the collection of some fines, but the amount of fines cannot be 
determined.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation.



Name: Kathryn Strombeck

Agency: Office of Tax Commissioner

Telephone: 701.328.3402

Date Prepared: 02/07/2019



19.0928.02000 FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council

02/05/2019

Amendment to: Engrossed HB 1477

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds

Revenues

Expenditures

Appropriations

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political  
subdivision.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

Counties

Cities

School Districts

Townships

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

Engrossed HB 1477 prohibits the sale of flavored e-liquid to minors.

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal  
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

Section 1 of engrossed HB 1477 prohibits the sale to minors of flavored liquid for use in electronic smoking devices. 
It also imposes a fine of $500 per package of product on a violating retailer.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

If enacted, engrossed HB 1477 may result in the collection of some fines, but the amount of fines cannot be 
determined.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation.



Name: Kathryn Strombeck

Agency: Office of Tax Commissioner

Telephone: 701.328.3402

Date Prepared: 02/07/2019



19.0928.01000 FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council

01/14/2019

Bill/Resolution No.: HB 1477

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds

Revenues

Expenditures

Appropriations

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political  
subdivision.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

Counties

Cities

School Districts

Townships

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

HB 1477 prohibits the sale of nicotine-based e-liquid.

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal  
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

Section 1 of HB 1477 prohibits the sale of flavored liquid nicotine for use in electronic smoking devices. It also 
imposes a fine of $100 per package of product on the offending retailer, and a fine of $10,000 on the manufacturer 
that is in violation of the law.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

If enacted, HB 1477 may result in a loss of sales tax revenue unless purchasers switch to other available products. 
The bill may also result in the collection of some fines. However, neither of these changes in revenue can be 
estimated as there is very limited information about the use of flavored nicotine products.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation.



Name: Kathryn Strombeck

Agency: Office of Tax Commissioner

Telephone: 701.328.3402

Date Prepared: 01/19/2019
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31109 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

Committee Clerk: Elaine Stromme by Donna Whetham 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
  
Relating to prohibiting the sale of flavored e-liquid; and to provide a penalty. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1-5 

 
Vice Chairman Rohr:  Opened the Hearing on HB1477.  Roll call taken.  A quorum is 
present. 
 
Representative Alisa Mitskog, District 25:   In support of HB 1477. (See Attachment 1) 
(1:53 – 4:00) 
 
Maddy House, a Junior at Century High School:  Speaking on behalf of the Century High 
School SADD students and the Bismarck Tobacco Free Youth Board in support of HB 1477. 
(See Attachment 2).  4:00 -  8:45  
 
Heather Austin, Executive Director for Tobacco Free North Dakota:  In support of HB 
1477. (See Attachment 3) 9:10 – 14:41 
 
Representative Tveit:  Can the e-products be advertised on TV? 
 
Heather Austin:  It is my understanding that they are not included in the agreement that 
prohibited tobacco advertising, because they are new.  You do see full page advertisements 
in newspapers where you would not for traditional cigarettes.  
 
Representative Skroch:  I’m trying to visualize this when you can deliver the equivalent of 
an entire pack of cigarettes in one hit. What is the risk of overdosing and are you aware of 
incidents of overdose?  Would this limit access to the age of 18? 
 
Heather Austin: The pod I referenced it is equivalent to the nicotine content of a pack of 
cigarette, so it is not one hit it is the entire pod.  Nicotine is known to be poisonous.  In some 
countries it is used as an insecticide.  There have been many poisoning phone calls.  They 
spiked in 2014 with just shy of 3000 poison phone calls.  There have been toddler deaths 
and pet deaths because they smell really good to pets and they chew through the packaging.  



House Human Services Committee  
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Vice Chairman Rohr:  You have some data is for the stores in North Dakota that carry this 
but what is the data for the number of youth using?  
 
Heather Austin:  The data is climbing in North Dakota, in the data from 2017 showed that 
21% of our youth admitted to using these products.  
 
Reba Mathern-Jacobson,The American Lung Association:  In support of HB 1477.  We 
do support the banning the sale of flavored nicotine products. 18:58-19:04 
 
Vice Chairman Rohr:  Any further support?  Any opposition to HB 1477?  
 
Gregory Conley on behalf of the American Vaping Association:   In opposition to HB 
1477.  I strongly urge you to reject HB 1477. (See Attachment 4)  (20:23:22)  
 
Representative Tveit: This bill is for limiting youth smokers not adults? 
 
Gregory Conley: You will deter adult smokers who are switching to these products.  If you 
are an adult who wants to quit smoking a cheap imitation of something designed to taste like 
a cigarette, remember the e cigarette has no flavor. Tobacco is a flavor.  There is no evidence 
that youth who are looking to rebel or large nicotine hits that go to their brain that if you 
eliminated flavors that they wouldn’t go seek out that hit anyway.  We fear you could be 
restricting adults and do nothing on youth usage. There was a study from Yale that cited the 
worst effect on public health would be if you banned flavored e cigarettes and did not ban 
menthol cigarettes.  You would end up with more smoking and less quitting.  That is what will 
happen if this bill passes.  
 
Representative Schneider:  You cited the FDA in support for adults quitting through vaping 
but are you also aware that there was a study that says this is an epidemic for our youth?  
 
Gregory Conley:  That is why FDA Commissioner Scott Gottlieb says in one month we are 
going to put out official policy restricting the sale of flavored vapor products to adult only retail 
stores. He recognized he wants to ban flavored cigars and menthol cigarettes, but flavored 
e cigarettes provide a gateway out of smoking for adults.  
  
Representative Schneider:   Do you know any adults that use gummy bears? 
   
Gregory Conley: Yes, I quit with watermelon flavor gummies.  If we were talking about 
marketing of flavors or names what we put on the label, that is very different then just saying 
85-90% of products put on the market banned immediately.  That is a big difference. 
 
Representative Schneider: But that hasn’t been proposed?   
 
Gregory Conley: No, we have only been talking about a ban that will shut down small 
businesses. 
Representative Schneider:  Do you think that we will believe that it will undermine adult 
quitting through vaping if we ban children’s type flavors such as gummy bears and skittles? 
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Gregory Conley:   You are not simply going after bad companies that are infringing on 
trademarks there are thousands of adults saying if there were not flavors that they would still 
be smoking. 
 
David Owen:  In opposition to HB 1477.   I started smoking to relax, then I realized how 
unhealthy it was. I looked at the single most important thing I wanted to replace in an alternate 
product.  That was the taste of tobacco in my mouth. How I quit smoking I started out with e 
cigarettes.  I started out with grape flavor, it tastes good with no smell.  I can have my nicotine 
in a safe way and in an appealing way to me. If you pass this bill you will take away the single 
most important benefit in terms of experience over cigarettes.  I have been vaping for 2 years. 
30:36 
  
William Boldenow, owner of Infinite Vapor:  In opposition to HB 1477.  Owner of stores 
that sells e cigarettes. We have been open 5 years now and have been able to help in the 
tens of thousands of North Dakotans alone.  We have 13 stores across 3 states.  No one 
wants these in the hands of children, but we have not been compliance checked in three 
years.  I do think the problem could be curbed with better restrictions on marketing.  Everyone 
who vapes likes flavors, not tobacco.  Most people who quits does not want the taste of 
tobacco or no flavor.  If this bill passes we will go out of business and it will push people back 
to cigarettes.  There are many other ways to help stop this, I think sensible legislation is in 
order but I strongly urge you not to pass this bill. (33:00-35:55) 
 

Representative Westlind:  What is the average age are your customers? 
 
David Owen: I would say average of 30 years old.  We have helped a wide range of people 
to quit smoking. 
 
Representative Westlind: Do you sell any other products in your stores and do you think the 
real reason they are buying your products is to quit smoking?  
 
In opposition to to HB 1477 
  
David Owen:  With the new CBD becoming federally legal we will have that and other than 
that we sell strictly a harm reduction electronic cigarette and yes I do think we have helped 
tens of thousands to quit real cigarettes.  98% of the people we serve are trying to get off 
cigarettes. (37:27) 
 
Ty Cox, Dutchman Vapors:  Owner of store that sells e cigarettes with 3 locations in North 
Dakota as well as a manufacturing facility.  I smoked for 22 years and was able to quit with 
the help of vaping.  I tried everything before that.  We can help people get off smoking and 
we help thousands every month quit smoking.  We serve about 9000 customers a month. 
Under 1% of our sales are tobacco flavored products, under 2% of sales are for menthol 
flavored products the 97% of sales are for all other flavors.  You would be cutting out 97% of 
what I sell every month to customers I help.  Customer ages range from 25 to 86.  In opposition 
to this bill. 41:05 
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Darius Endres, owner of Sports Vape: I am extremely opposed to this bill.  If this bill passes 
I will have to close my doors or move to another state. People need these flavored e cigarettes 
they need another option instead of the tobacco flavored cigarettes.  A lot of the adults love 
all the flavors.  It could create a black market because Minnesota has flavors so potentially 
people could go across the border and buy it.  I agree that anyone 17 and under should not 
have these products. Please turn this bill down.  (42:00- 44:50) 
 
Justin Danberry, owner of Ecig City: In opposition to HB 1477.  A vape shop owner in 
Fargo.  I smoked and started at age 18 and I was able to quit after I found vaping.  I didn’t 
want anything that tasted like a cigarette.  We have just over 3000 customers a month.  I can’t 
remember the last time I sold a product that was tobacco flavored or just menthol.  We 
generally sell a fruit menthol mix. This ban would put be out of business.  I tried many ways 
of quitting but vaping actually helped me quit and I want to help other people quit.  I feel like 
am doing something good and helping others.  Nobody wants minors to have these products.  
 
Mike Rud, President of the North Dakota Petroleum Marketers Association:   In 
opposition to HB 1477.   (See Attachment 5).  49:40-50:08 
 
Avery Kraemer, owner of Omologato Ecigs in Fargo:   I have been doing this for 3 years.  
Out of the 50,000 customers I have helped at 8 different stores and I have had only one 
customer not wanting a flavored juice.  In opposition to HB 1477.  50:15-51:25 
 
Todd Fiechtner, store owner of Ecig City in Fargo ND:   I respectfully ask that you oppose 
HB 1477.  
 
Neil Wells, Ecig City:  I work in the industry and I was a 2 pack a day smoker for over 10 
years and I am now 30 years old.  I quit using flavors that was not tobacco, but I still use grape 
and menthol.  I strongly oppose HB 1477.  
 
Matthew Clark: In opposition to HB 1477. I wanted to correct one statistic presented today.  
One e jewel pod is equivlant to 3 or 4 cigarettes.  The average cigarette is about 12 mg of 
nicotine per cigarette.  In one jewel pod you are getting about 50 mg. of nicotine.   52:30  
  
Brandon Forde, Omologato Ecigs:  In opposition to HB 1477.  Without e cigarettes I would  
still be smoking myself, please oppose the bill.  
 
Vice Chairman Rohr:  Any one in a neutral position?  Seeing none. Closed the hearing on 
HB 1477. 
 
 
 
 



2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Human Services Committee 
Fort Union Room, State Capitol 

HB 1477 
1/30/2019 

31838 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk Signature Nicole Klaman 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to prohibiting the sale of flavored e-liquid; and to provide a penalty. 
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Weisz: Opened meeting on HB 1477. 
 
Rep. Gretchen Dobervich:  Considering the testimony and thinking about how we address 
some of the other smoking related issues.  I’m wondering about amending it stating that you 
cannot market to children, names of flavors not exaggerated.  The bill author also discussed 
increasing the age to purchase flavors to 19. 
 
Rep. Tveit: With all the use of labels and wrappers are they infringing on patent rights? 
 
Rep. Dwight Kiefert: Valley City has passed an ordinance banning the sale of flavored 
already. 
 
Rep. Rohr: The people in opposition were the business owners that sell the product and 
chronic smokers as it’s helped them. 
 
Rep. Dobervich: This is why I was entertaining the amendment because they have helped 
people, we just need to narrow the audience. 
 
Rep. Schneider: The testimony I remember the most was the Century High student.  She 
stated it’s an epidemic in the high schools, clearly they are marketing to kids. The widespread 
use, a whole new generation addicted to nicotine.   
 
Rep. Skroch: My concern in part is the ease at which children can get it into the school 
and the delivery system.  I don’t know that this bill will fix that. It’s concerning that it looks like 
a flash drive.   
 
Rep. Tveit: One thing I remember with testimony is flavorless tobacco, is a flavor. 
I motion for a do pass 
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Rep. Kiefert: Seconded. 
 
Rep. Rohr: I am going to resist the motion because I don’t think it addresses the issues at 
hand. 
 
Rep. Matthew Ruby: I too am going to resist the motion.  There is clearly an issue and this 
bill is not addressing them. 
 
Rep. Damschen: I don’t’ think this is a solution but I am going to support because of ths 
issues vaping is causing.  What is the answer? 
 
Rep. Skroch: I would be willing to have the sponsor look at it and see if we can fix it 
somehow.  It would be up to the committee to see if we can’t address the issue in the schools 
right now. 
 
Rep. Dobervich: Can we change it to a study of the issue VS. Passing or not passing 
something, maybe we need to look at what can we do. 
 
Rep. Tveit: I don’t like the study because we would be looking at another 2 years down the 
road before we do anything with it.  I’m more inclined to go with Rep. Skroch’s suggestion of 
having the sponsor make changes.  With that I will withdraw my motion 
 
Rep. Kiefert: I withdraw my Second. 
 
Rep. Dobervich: I will get with Representative Mitskog and see what we can do. 
 
Chairman Weisz: Closed meeting 
 



2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Human Services Committee 
Fort Union Room, State Capitol 
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☐ Subcommittee 
☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Nicole Klaman 

 
Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
 
Relating to prohibiting the sale of flavored e-liquid; and to provide a penalty. 
 
 
Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Weisz: Opened meeting 
 
Chairman Weisz: So if I read this amendment correctly it doesn’t ban the sale of flavors 
anymore except for those under 21 years old. 
 
Representative Karen Rohr:    I have a question of why 21 years of age and not 18 years 
of age. 
 
Representative Clayton Fegley:   Flavorless is the biggest issue in schools.  I don’t think 
the bill addresses the issue of them. 
 
Representative Matthew Ruby: Motion for a DO NOT Pass 
 
Representative Todd Porter: Seconded the motion. 
 
Chairman Weisz: Representative Mitskog?  Why 20 and 19 year olds? 
 
Representative Alisa Mitskog:   I had discussion with the industry, and we don’t want to 
restrict the sale on things adults want.  Liquid Nicotine is falling into the hands of underage. 
Try to buy flavored Nicotine, you can’t buy it.  Moving forward to figure out a plausible age 
we can agree on. Lobbyists were not opposed to 21 years old. 
 
Representative Mary Schneider: We heard from Representative Ruby that the 
teachers are stating it’s the unflavored that is posing the problem 
 
Rep. Mitskog:      Contrary to what I believe to be the problem, or what I was told.  One 
lobbyist was concerned about illegal sales to underage by an of age individual.  We discussed 
increasing the penalty for selling to a minor.  Kids buying from 19 year olds. 
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Chairman Weisz: Further questions? 
 
Rep. Mitskog:   I was warned when writing this piece of legislation to avoid an all-out ban.  I 
serve on a local coalition and speaking to school officials, they are concerned by the use of 
electronic devices-E-CIGS. 
 
Chairman Weisz: Current fine for selling to underage by an individual of age.  Not the 
actual store. 
 
Rep. Mitskog:  I do not know the specific.  I would add, even the Representative from 
convenient stores wouldn’t be opposed to 21 years of age.   I asked my local gas station if 
enforcing that age would be an issue.  She stated no because they are already checking the 
IDs of young people. 
 
Representative Bill Tveit:    When you are dealing with 21-  Throughout the state we 
recognize 18 year olds as adults.  I believe this is the problem. 
 
Rep. Mitskog: I think this product is unlike any we’ve seen for decades.  We need the 
US Government and Attorney General needs to  get on top of this.  I respect that at 18 they 
can buy a cigarette. But increase has become an epidemic. 
 
Rep. Tveit: I understand your fears but don’t think this bill or amendment addresses the 
issue. 
 
Rep. Mitskog:  What can be done is the million dollar question.  I believe limiting the 
access is a step.  The research is indicating higher rates of underage use. 
 
Representative Greg Westlind: Flavored Juell products can only be bought online? 
 
Rep. Mitskog: It’s my understanding that you can only buy this brand online. 
 
Rep. Westlind: How is the age determined over the internet? 
 
Rep. Mitskog: I went to the Juell site and their actions would demonstrate there is an 
issue here. 
 
Rep. Schneider:   If this bill isn’t the right solution, is there any plan for a study? 
 
Rep. Mitskog:   It’s been brought up as an option.  Per US General, this is an epidemic.  
I can vet out the statistics, which will put us further behind.  How are we going to respond to 
all the nicotine addicts, underage. 
 
Representative Chuck Damschen: Problem is really with under age illegal use, so  
maybe crack down on the people selling it. 
 
Rep. Mitskog:  This was suggested by tobacco lobbyist.  Part of the amendment is action, if 
we don’t want to agree to the age restriction of 21.  I’d be open to that. 
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Representative Dick Anderson: When I consider 18-21, someone at 21 could still be 
connected to high school friends.  I can understand the requested age limit. 
 
Rep. Mitskog:   We can probably all go back to our days when we were underage. 
 
Rep. M. Ruby Infraction Class A misdemeanor.  If we can increase that? 
 
Chairman Weisz: Sale of tobacco to minor, under 12.1.3103 
 
Rep. M. Ruby 57-36-33 Penalties for Underage Sale of Nicotine.  If we want to amend 
to increase fine, I’d be willing to withdraw my motion-If not I’d like it to remain. 
 
Rep. Dobervich: Chapter 51-32  in person fine is $300.00 dollars fine, online $100-
$1000.00 fine 
 
Rep. Damschen: Strike Page 1 lines 4-15, Subsection 2 add “legal age”,  
Section 8 line change 100.00 to 500.00, Strike subsection 4 
 
Rep. M. Ruby: Second 
 
Chairman Weisz: So everyone is clear, we are striking out the e-flavored, striking 
manufacture and basically saying if you sell to a minor you will be fined $500.00.  Removing 
sections 1 and 4 and amending 2 and 3, eliminating 4 leaving 5. 
 
Voice Vote: Motion carries to adopt Amendment 
 
Rep. Schneider I would move an amendment to remove on pg 2 subsection 5 and 
substitute the language on the amendment.  Subsection 5 Adds language of class B 
misdemeanor and gives the defense sale must have been made in good faith.  21 would be 
replaced with under 18 
 
Rep. Dobervich: Second 
 
Rep. Tveit We are dealing with the sale of, do we need to recognize furnishing of? 
 
Rep. M. Ruby I think I am going to resist this because we aren’t consistent here.   
 
Rep. Schneider I don’t think we are saying cigarettes are an epidemic and the fact that 
this would be a class B misdemeanor might have some important noting factors as a court 
appearance is necessary.  The epidemic proportions of this justify the difference. 
 
Voice Vote: Undetermined 
 
Roll Call Vote:  Yes 4  No 8  Absent 2 
Motion to adopt amendment fails 
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Rep. M. Ruby I move do pass on HB 1477 as amended 
 
Representative Dick Anderson:   Second 
(0:44:54) 
 
Chairman Weisz: Previously amended line 6-15 is gone, subsection 3 fine from  $100 to 
$500, subsection 4 removed, subsection 2 stays adding language “under the legal age” 
Subsection 5 should go because it references Subsection 4, but that amendment was not 
adopted. 
 
Rep. M. Ruby I withdraw my motion 
Representative Dick Anderson: I withdraw my second 
 
Rep. Porter I move to further amendment HB 1477.  Page 2, remove subsection 5 lines 1,2 
and 3 
 
Rep. M. Ruby Second 
 
Voice Vote:  Motion to Amend Carries 
 
Rep. M. Ruby Move a Do Pass as amended 
Rep. Anderson Second 
 
Roll Call Vote: Yes 11 No 1  Absent 2 
Motion carries, do pass as amended. 
 
Rep. Damschen: Carrier. 
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Adopted by the Human Services Committee 

February 4, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1477 

Page 1, line 2, after "e-liquid" insert "to minors" 

Page 1, line 6, after "e-liquid" insert "to minors" 

Page 1, remove lines 7 through 15 

Page 1, line 16, replace "2." with ".1." 

Page 1, line 17, after "e-liquid" insert "to a minor" 

Page 1, line 18, replace "3." with "2." 

Page 1, line 18, replace "i" with "1" 

Page 1, line 19, replace "one" with "five" 

Page 1, remove lines 21 through 24 

Page 2, remove lines 1 through 3 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 19.0928.01002 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1477: Human Services Committee (Rep. Weisz, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS 
(11 YEAS, 1 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HS 1477 was placed on the 
Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 2, after "e-liquid" insert "to minors" 

Page 1, line 6, after "e-liguid" insert "to minors" 

Page 1, remove lines 7 through 15 

Page 1, line 16, replace "2." with "1.,," 

Page 1, line 17, after "e-liquid" insert "to a minor" 

Page 1, line 18, replace "�" with "2,," 

Page 1, line 18, replace "2." with ''1" 

Page 1, line 19, replace "one" with "five" 

Page 1, remove lines 21 through 24 

Page 2, remove lines 1 through 3 

Renumber accordingly 
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2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Judiciary Committee 
Fort Lincoln Room, State Capitol 

HB 1477 
3/19/2019 

#33968 (37:41) 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Meghan Pegel/ Alicia Larsgaard 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 12.1-31 of the North 
Dakota Century Code, relating to prohibiting the sale of flavored e-liquid to minors; and 
to provide a penalty. 
 

Minutes:                                                 5 Attachments 

 
 
Chair Larson: Opened the hearing on HB 1477. 
 
Alisa Mitskog, District 25 Representative: Testified in favor. (See attachment #1) 
 
Representative Mitskog: I encourage the committee to consider an amendment of possibly 
restricting flavored nicotine to those under 21. I know the is another amendment Senator 
Bakke has. 
 
Senator Luick: Do we know in North Dakota what rate of teen’s use is at? 
 
Representative Mitskog: There will be those experts following me. One of the challenges 
is that this is becoming such an emerging issue that getting numbers is so difficult because 
it’s such a new issue. 
 
Senator Luick: About two sessions ago, we had that this in front of us when we were trying 
to determine if it was a tobacco product or not. We had people here with vials of this vaping 
product. The nicotine was so high that we were told that if that material was put onto an 
infant’s skin, it could be fatal.  
 
Representative Mitskog: You raise a significant issue. The potency of the nicotine and the 
cartridges come in various strengths. Some of the cartridges carry the equivalent of a 
package of cigarettes. Following my testimony, I could share more specifics on that. The 
argument has been that this has been a good cessation tool for those who want to quit 
smoking. This issue is that we have a new segment of users that most likely would not have 
started smoking cigarettes but they have heard the message that this is a safe product to 
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use. In talking to school officials, they’re seeing users in students that they wouldn’t be 
traditional smokers. 
 
Senator Bakke: When you get a pack of cigarettes, it has the Attorney General’s warning 
that it could be harmful to your health. Is that type of warning on e-cigs? 
 
Representative Mitskog: I haven’t really examined a package. One of the companies has 
moved out in front of this issue. They have removed the flavored nicotine from bricks and 
mortar store. They’re only available for online purpose. You have to be 21 to purchase. That 
verification process, I don’t know how you do that online. There has been some movement 
in the industry but probably not soon enough. 
 
(9:02) Neil Charvat, Director of the Tobacco Prevention and Control Program for the 
ND DOH: Testified in favor. (See attachment #2) 
 
(14:27) Senator Bakke: Is there a warning label on these devices like there are on packs of 
cigarettes?  
 
Neil Charvat: There is no warning. These are not regulated as tobacco products. There is 
no warning label required by the FDA or anyone to be on these products. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: You are now the head Director of Tobacco Prevention and Control 
in the Health Department. If this bill passed, would that help you, in including this in your 
work, to prevent tobacco use amongst teens and so forth? 
 
Neil Charvat: This would help, but it’s hard to say what percentage it would reduce it to. This 
is a step in the right direction. In my opinion, we have other steps we could take, but it’s a 
start. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: In your efforts to prevent tobacco use, do you also have programs 
to diminish the use of this as well already? 
 
Neil Charvat: We treat this already as a tobacco product. Even though the industry does not 
require it to be viewed as a tobacco product and it is not taxed as a tobacco product, we treat 
it as such because it is nicotine from tobacco. We recommend people who want to quit using 
this product, to do the same thing one would do with the tobacco product. We help people 
quit this with ND quits. We treat it as an addiction as well. 
 
Senator Luick: This bill is engrossed. Is there something here that would make this a better 
bill? 
 
Neil Charvat: I’m not behind any efforts for amendments, I’m just here in support. 
 
Senator Bakke: There’s a $500 fine if a person sells these to a minor. Do you feel that’s 
enough of a penalty or it needs to be enhanced? 
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Nei Charvat: Penalties for sale are a good amount. If it’s up to me, if it’s just after the person 
selling, is there any culpability for say the store like if it is just the clerk? That is a question I 
would have to get answered to go forward.  
 
Chair Larson: Can you tell be what the penalty is for selling a tobacco product to a juvenile? 
 
Neil Charvat: I believe it’s $50 - $100 and it is an infraction. 
 
Chair Larson: We don’t have a criminal offense attached to this as it looks. 
 
(19:15) Heather Austin, Executive Director for Tobacco Free North Dakota: Testified in 
favor. (See attachment #3) 
 
(22:58) Senator Luick: You said you had an amendment? 
 
Heather Austin: Senator Judy Lee was going to submit that amendment to you all. 
 
Senator Bakke: You can’t buy the e-cigs unless you’re 18 or is it 21? 
 
Heather Austin: It is 18 in the state of ND. 
 
Senator Bakke: So 18 year olds are buying it and giving it to the younger kids? 
 
Heather Austin: In some cases, yes. 
 
Senator Bakke: Do they have to show identification in order to purchase thee e-cigs? 
 
Heather Austin: I believe so, but enforcement of that is difficult because these products are 
not classified as tobacco so not all vape shops are subject to compliance checks depending 
on where they are located within the state. Cities that have adopted the ordinance might 
require that of their vape shops but cities that have not, would not necessarily be doing so. 
 
Senator Bakke: What about online? They can just say they are 18 and get it online, correct?   
 
Heather Austin: So far as I know, it is the honor system online. I don’t know how they would 
regulate that. 
 
(24:50) Deb Knuth, Government Relations Director for the North Dakota American 
Cancer Society Cancer Action Network: Testified in favor. (See attachment #4) 
 
(25:49) Senator Luick: Your language is not the same as Senator Lee’s is it?  
 
Deb Knuth: The definitions I offered in my testimony are our own. They are probably 
something stricter than what you’re going to see in Senator Lee’s. 
 
(26:53) Genevieve Plumadore, JUUL Labs: Testified in favor. (See attachment #5) 
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Genevieve Plumadore: While it is not a cessation product in the eyes of the FDA, there is 
significant data that shows that it is a harm reduction tool. Initial studies that have come out 
of the U.K. show that utilizing JUUL along with counseling is more effective that utilizing 
Chantix, Nicorette Gum, or the Patch. There is nicotine included in those cessation tools.  
 
Regarding the warning label, I will show you a sample of our product. We have a warning 
label on there. Some of the counterfeit products you see, have been associated with a lot of 
the health risks because they have chemicals that are not included in JUUL and never have 
been, also have these types of products. There are closed systems. The pods are meant to 
fit in one device. E-liquids are mixed so the retailer is also considered a manufacturer in the 
eyes of the law. Those products may not necessarily have warning labels. We proactively, 
as a company, have put these on our products.  
 
You also had a question about the online verification system. Right now we have a 3 step 
verification process. You upload your government issued I.D. with the front and the back. 
You have to give your cellphone number. They do a twostep authentication. You get texted 
a code. If you look under the age of 30, it will ask you for a selfie. You have to take a picture 
of yourself and send it in. Then a third party company looks at it and verifies that you match 
your I.D. The last part is that if you I.D. name says something different than what is on your 
credit card; for example, Tom and Thomas, you will not be able to purchase the product. It 
has to match letter for letter. Proactively, we’ve done it for 21 plus. Regardless of your 
jurisdiction, if you are 18, you cannot purchase the product. 
 
Senator Bakke: What is the nicotine level in your product? 
 
Genevieve Plumadore: We have a 5% or 3%. We do not have a 0% because we believe it 
is a tool to help you off ramp. Someone before me mentioned that one pod has the same 
nicotine strength as a pack of cigarettes. That is true. One pod is 200 puffs. You as the 
consumer, decides how many puffs you want to take to emulate having a cigarette. It looks 
like a USB but it was created by two gentlemen who were design students at Stanford. They 
did not want smoke anymore and they did not want to have the stigma associated with 
smoking. They designed this product to be able to smoke at home or at work and not have 
the stigma. You can choose how much you take of this. We have found that most smokers 
with finish the entire cigarette because it costs money. Here, the consumer has control as to 
how much they ingest. 
 
Senator Bakke: How many would you have to puff to have an adverse reaction or to 
overdose on the nicotine. 
 
Genevieve Plumadore: I don’t know the answer to that. I can find out and get back to you 
on that.  
 
(34:57) Jack McDonald, ND Society for Respiratory Therapists: Testified in favor.  
The ND Society for Respiratory Therapists are the group that work in the states hospitals 
and clinics. Many of those respiratory problems are caused by nicotine and cigarettes. They 
generally support any measures and efforts that would reduce the use of nicotine products. 
We endorse this bill in any form that it comes out of this committee.  
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Chair Larson: Any further testimony in support? Any testimony in opposition? Neutral? 
  
Vice Chairman Dwyer: In the house, I noticed they took out the definitions and increased 
the penalty from $100 to $500. What is the reason for removing those sections? 
 
Representative Mitskog: I don’t know. As a member of the taxation committee, the definition 
of tobacco e-cags has been discussed. There’s going to be a study on defining e-cigs and 
tobacco. Other than my observations, there have been many opinions on this. 
 
Senator Bakke: What happens if you buy a pack of cigarettes and give it to a minor?  
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: It is an infraction. There is a fine up to $1000.  
 
Chair Larson: Closed the hearing on HB 1477. 
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☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Meghan Pegel 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 12.1-31 of the North 
Dakota Century Code, relating to prohibiting the sale of flavored e-liquid to minors; and 
to provide a penalty. 
 
 

Minutes:                                                 2 Attachments 

 
 
Chair Larson begins discussion on HB 1477. 
 
(see attachment #1) 
 
Chair Larson: This is a two-page amendment from Senator Judy Lee. This has a list of 
definitions including an electronic smoking device and a tobacco product. 
 
Senator Luick: The whole amendment is a descriptor of the product itself and what the uses 
are? 
 
Chair Larson: Right. 
 
Senator Luick: Motions to adopt the amendment adding “Electronic smoking device” 
and “Tobacco product” in the 57-36-01 definitions. 
Senator Myrdal: Seconds. 
 
Chair Larson: This may make it taxable and may change some of the testimony that we 
heard. 
 
Senator Bakke: What testimony? 
 
Chair Larson: My guess is that the people from JUUL that testified in favor may not be 
supportive of changing their product to be defined as a tobacco product. 
 
A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 4 yeas, 1 nay, 0 absent. Amendment is adopted. 
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(see attachment #2) 
 
Senator Bakke: Right now, if someone sells or provides a minor with alcohol, it is a class a 
misdemeanor. They feel that supplying tobacco to a minor should be a class b misdemeanor; 
that’s what this amendment does. 
 
Chair Larson: Joe, do you see any problem with the two amendments working together? 
 
Joseph Jensen, UND Law Intern, neutral party 
Jensen: I don’t believe so. I’m sure any changes I would need to make would be cosmetic 
only. 
 
Senator Bakke: If we’re going to take a stand on alcohol, we should move this up for 
cigarettes as well. It will be a deterrent.   
 
Senator Bakke: Motions to adopt amendment 19.0928.02001. 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: Seconds. 
 
A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 4 yeas, 1 nay, 0 absent. Amendment is adopted. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: Motions for a Do Pass as Amended.  
Senator Bakke: Seconds. 
 
A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 5 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent. Motion carries. 
 
Chair Larson: I’m not sure if this will get through the House, adding new taxes onto things. 
 
Senator Bakke will carry the bill. 
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☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Meghan Pegel 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 12.1-31 of the North 
Dakota Century Code, relating to prohibiting the sale of flavored e-liquid to minors; to 
amend and reenact subsection 1 of section 12.1-31-03 and section 57-36-01 of the 

North Dakota Century Code, relating to prohibiting the sale of tobacco to minors and the 
definition of tobacco product; and to provide a penalty. 

 
 

Minutes:                                                 No Attachments 

 
 
Chair Larson begins discussion on HB 1477. 
 
Chair Larson: The amendments that we put on this bill have some problems with sections 
of law that they went into. Legislative council came and spoke with me today. Senator Lee’s 
definitions amendments put this into the tax code and has all kinds of tax ramifications that 
won’t work in this bill. Fortunately, they caught that before we sent it through. 
 
Senator Myrdal: Motions to reconsider the actions by which we passed HB 1477. 
Senator Luick: Seconds. 
 
Chair Larson: Emily Thompson from legislative council contacted me. She will explain the 
concerns that that amendment caused. She did not have a problem with the class b 
misdemeanor penalty, just the definitions. 
 
A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 5 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent. Motion carries. 
 
(3) Emily Thompson, Legislative Counsel, neutral party 
 
Thompson: There is language that became the new section 3 of the bill that was in the 
tobacco tax chapter- 57-36-01. It added definitions for an electronic smoking device and a 
tobacco product. There was confusion about the intent of why that was added and how it’s 
phrased. For instance, there’s a current definition in that chapter for other tobacco products 
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such as snuff and chewing tobacco. Now we’re adding a definition of tobacco product which 
also is defined to include snuff and chewing tobacco. There are some inconsistencies. 
 
Chair Larson: You’re talking about a duplication? 
 
Thompson: Correct. 
 
Senator Myrdal: This amendment didn’t go through legislative counsel. 
 
Thompson: Correct. I don’t know if the intent was to provide definitions in your new section 
for electronic smoking devices or if that was intended to somehow tax electronic smoking 
devices. For practical reasons, as that language stands, if we would apply that definition, 
there would be four sections of that chapter that could potentially be made somewhat 
confusing and would change that chapter. Those deal with corporate officer liability, governor 
manager liability and the bonds that they have to place. Right now, the bonds are calculated 
in an amount equal to the estimated annual tobacco products tax liability of the company. 
Now we’re defining tobacco product as all of these things and electronic cigarettes. Now that 
would also sweep in the amount of tax liability for electronic smoking devices, which are not 
taxed as a tobacco product currently; they’re taxed as sales tax. There are some ripple effects 
in that chapter. 
 
Chair Larson: We’ll reconsider the unnumbered, Judy Lee amendments. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: Motions to reconsider the amendment of adding “Electronic 
device” and “Tobacco product” in the 57-36-01 definitions. 
Senator Bakke: Seconds. 
 
A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 5 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent. Motion carries. 
 
Senator Myrdal: Do the definitions now include vaping as a tobacco product?  
 
Thompson: No. Vaping, electronic cigarettes and liquid nicotine are not taxable right now 
under the tobacco tax law. The only tax that are applied to those items currently is sales tax. 
There were bills that did look at taxing electronic cigarettes, and I drafted most of them. It’s 
a multiple hour rewrite of that whole chapter in order to get that taxing structure, so 
unfortunately it’s not as simple as tweaking a definition; it is an overhaul of that whole chapter 
to incorporate that in. 
 
Senator Bakke: Those failed in the House? 
 
Thompson: Those bills were unsuccessful. 
 
Senator Myrdal: I understand the retraction, but I think vaping is a tobacco product and 
should eventually be taxed. What I understand is that nicotine is too expensive to produce in 
a lab and so is derived from tobacco. Tobacco companies are getting away with it, and we’re 
going to be paying hundreds of millions of dollars in healthcare in 20 years. 
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Vice Chairman Dwyer: The way the bill was introduced in the House, it said electronic 
smoking devices shall mean the same as in 12.1-31-03. They were trying to be consistent 
on what they were talking about apparently. Then they took that out. I don’t know if the intent 
of this was to put it in the taxation chapter or if it was just to have the definition, I’m not sure. 
I’m assuming it was for taxation purposes. The bill as we have it before us, do we need to 
have a definition of electronic device so we’re consistent with the criminal code? 
 
Thompson: I looked at this bill as it was originally introduced. It prohibited the sale of flavored 
e-liquid statewide for any age and applied a penalty of $10,000 to that. Within that language, 
they did have a definition to an electronic smoking device and said it had the same meaning 
in the chapter that prohibits the sale of those devices to minors; they mirrored that. It also 
defined flavored e-liquid. When you read that with the prohibition in 12.1-31-03, which is our 
current statute that prohibits the sale of electronic smoking devices to minors, it makes sense 
reading those two together because they were different things. One said you can’t sell 
electronic smoking devices to minors, and this said you cannot sell flavored e-liquid in the 
state to anyone. They were different and had different penalties. As this was amended in the 
House, they took out all of those definitions and added the word “to minors” in the title so it 
changed it from you can’t sell flavored liquid in the state, to now you just can’t sell flavored 
e-liquid to minors. When they stripped all of that out, they were left with the language that 
you have in the bill currently. Now you have somewhat confusing laws at hand. You have the 
statute in front of you that would be a new statute saying you can’t sell flavored e-liquid to 
minors. If you do, it’s a $500 fine. They’re classifying that prohibited sale as either the little 
e-liquid packets or an electronic cigarette device that comes preloaded with this e-liquid. If 
you do so, it’s now a $500 fine. Then you also have the current statute in law which prohibits 
the sale of electronic smoking devices to minors. If you do so, that’s an infraction. Now we 
have two statutes that will be very close to one another in the same chapter of code saying 
if you sell an e-cigarette to a minor, it’s an infraction, which is amended to a class b 
misdemeanor. Then right next to it you’re going to have another statute that says if you sell 
e-liquid to a minor or an electronic cigarette preloaded with an e-liquid, now it’s a $500 fine. 
Is it a class b misdemeanor and also a $500 fine? It seems duplicative. They both apply to 
selling an electronic smoking device that has potentially e-liquid in both cases with two 
different fees that apply. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: Could we fix that so we have a consistent proposal for both electronic 
devices and e-liquids? 
 
Thompson: It seems like a logical fix would be to take the statute that’s currently in law that 
says you can’t sell these devices to minors and include “or the flavored e-liquid” that would 
be going in these devices, whether it’s prepackaged or separately contained. You can add 
that definition in with the definitions that are already in that section for alternative nicotine 
products and electronic smoking devices and sweep that right in there as well.  
 
Chair Larson: Are you saying to keep it an infraction? 
 
Thompson: That would be up to the committee. 
 
Senator Myrdal: It seems to me we should kill this bill and put that other language in there 
plus the infraction could be up to $1,000. 
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Senator Bakke: We could hog house this bill and take the code that you’re saying we should 
put this in and take what’s here to combine it with that. Basically we’d be doing what this bill 
says but in a different section of the code. I would like to keep the class b misdemeanor 
simply because it’s a class a misdemeanor for giving alcohol to minors, so it’s more 
consistent. We should hog house it and clean it up. 
 
Chair Larson: In both places, whether it’s the liquid or cigarette itself, we’re stopping the 
delivery to juveniles. When I passed the bill two sessions ago, the reason that I went with an 
infraction at that point was because that was what the city ordinance said. At this point, I 
would be more in favor of the class b misdemeanor. 
 
Thompson: To clarify, you want the amendment to include the class b misdemeanor, not an 
infraction. 
 
Chair Larson: Correct. They can both be changed to the class b misdemeanor. 
 
Chair Larson ends discussion on HB 1477. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 12.1-31 of the North 
Dakota Century Code, relating to prohibiting the sale of flavored e-liquid to minors; to 
amend and reenact subsection 1 of section 12.1-31-03 and section 57-36-01 of the 
North Dakota Century Code, relating to prohibiting the sale of tobacco to minors and the 
definition of tobacco product; and to provide a penalty. 

 
 

Minutes:                                                 2 Attachments 

 
 
Chair Larson begins discussion on HB 1477. 

 
(see attachment #1) 

 
Chair Larson: As you recall, we had an amendment put on it that put this into a tobacco 

product which had some taxing problems. 

 
(see attachment #2) 

 
Senator Bakke: I had some amendments that went with your amendments. I think 

Legislative Council took your amendments from March 21st and added them to my 

amendments as well. Because of the way we amended out the definitions and no longer 
made it a tobacco product as such, there are some stores that don’t sell tobacco products. 
They only sell these e-cigarettes. There’s no way to enforce that class b misdemeanor 

because they’re not registered, and no one is monitoring them. We’re trying to make sure 
our youth doesn’t start using these and promoting the use, the e-cigarettes and e-liquids. 

This was originally an infraction, and we changed it to a class b misdemeanor because if you 
sell alcohol to minors, it’s a class a misdemeanor. In keeping with that, if they sell these, that 
would be a class b misdemeanor. At the bottom of the amendment, we are giving a definition 

of what e-liquid is. Page 2, section 3 puts in the language that we need as far as the dealer, 
distributor and what vapor products are so that people are aware of what we ’re talking about. 

Then we put in license requirements, so if people are going to sell this e-liquid, they have to 
have a license so that we know they’re there. The attorney general can revoke their license 
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if they fail to comply with regulations described by the attorney general. It’s basically enacting 
what they already have for tobacco products as far as licensing. It’s not making this a tobacco 

product, but it’s holding them accountable for who they’re selling to and who’s getting access 
to this. Otherwise we have a class b misdemeanor and no way to monitor it to know how 

these kids are getting ahold of it. Then a penalty for the violation of the chapter. You don’t 
want to put something in law that you can’t monitor and enact. 
 
Senator Myrdal: There’s currently online sales, so there’s no stopping that. Also we can’t 

identify this as a tobacco product, so it’s separate licensing from tobacco sales correct? 

 
Senator Bakke: Yes. It says each applicant for a license must be accompanied by a fee of 

$25, and each license must be prominently displayed on the premises covered by the license. 

It’s making sure that we know who is selling this and make sure they’re not selling to minors. 
 
Senator Myrdal: Is the attorney general okay with setting up a new licensing? I’m frustrated 

by the fact that we can’t identify it as tobacco. I don’t believe in higher taxes, but it is tobacco. 
Are we opening up a rabbit hole of other things that need to be licensed? I’m trying to figure 

out if this is a solid project to move forward. 
 
Chair Larson: At this late stage, this is opening up a lot for our committee to get this out. 

The Human Services committee heard this in the House. I’m wondering if we should pass 
this to the floor, and you can talk to Representative Weisz in the House about these 

amendments. Maybe then it can go to conference committee, and you can iron things out in 
committee where you could bring more people in to discuss the bill. That may be the easier 

way to go about further amending this. 
 
Senator Bakke: Senator Myrdal, you talked about trying to get it moved to where I personally 

feel it should be as well. This is a middle-step. Right now, we can’t classify it as a tobacco 
product, but this is getting it one step closer to that. The misdemeanor is going to be hard to 

enforce if we don’t have these places licensed. This is a companion amendment and basically 
defining the terms. 
 
Chair Larson: The House is going to want to understand what all of these changes are that 

we’re putting on it anyway. It might be a better product coming out of conference committee. 

 
Senator Bakke: If we do it in conference committee, we would get more buy-in from the 

House. 

 
Chair Larson: Correct. We would be educating that whole committee at once rather than 

separately. 
 
Senator Luick: What do we have in our hands right now? 

 
Chair Larson: Right now, we have this bill with the amendment that Senator Bakke had 

introduced, the 2001 amendment. That is currently on it as well. 
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Senator Bakke: The amendments that came from Senator J. Lee are not on there. It’s just 

the class b misdemeanor, and in conference committee, these amendments would be 

presented in order to substantiate the class b misdemeanor. 
 
Chair Larson: Yes, and to have it more enforceable. I will also talk to Representative Weisz 

to explain what some of the fixes need to be. 
 
Senator Luick: Motions for a Do Pass as Amended. 
Senator Myrdal: Seconds. 

 
Senator Lemm: We’re voting on the 2001 amendment? 

 
Chair Larson: It’s the full bill, and we added a penalty for selling e-liquids to minors to be a 

class b misdemeanor. 

 
Senator Lemm: Okay, that’s what I thought, thank you. 

 
A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent. Motion carries. 

 
Chair Larson: We will talk to the House and ask them not to concur and put a conference 

committee together. 
 
Senator Bakke will carry the bill. 
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for "t.\'°' 
Senator Bakke ':>...� 

February 20, 2019 ,0"-' 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1477 

Page 1, line 2, after the semicolon insert "to amend and reenact subsection 1 of section 
12.1-31-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to prohibiting the sale of 
tobacco to minors;" 

Page 1, after line 4, insert: 

"SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 12.1-31-03 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1. a. It is an infrastiona class B misdemeanor for any person to sell or 
furnish to a minor, or procure for a minor, cigarettes, cigarette papers, 
cigars, snuff, tobacco in any other form in which it may be utilized for 
smoking or chewing, electronic smoking devices, or alternative 
nicotine products. As used in this subdivision, "sell" includes 
dispensing from a vending machine under the control of the actor. 

b. It is an infraction for any person to display or offer for sale cigarettes, 
cigarette papers, cigars, snuff, tobacco in any other form in which it 
may be utilized for smoking or chewing, electronic smoking devices, 
or alternative nicotine products through a self-service display. This 
subdivision does not apply to a: 

Renumber accordingly 

(1) Vending machine or other coin-operated machine that is 
permitted under section 12.1-31-03.1; or 

(2) Self-service display that is located in a tobacco specialty store." 
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Adopted by the Senate Judiciary Committee 

March 19, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE B ILL NO. 1477 

Page 1, line 2, after the semicolon insert "to amend and reenact subsection 1 of section 
12.1-31-03 and section 57-36-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to 
prohibiting the sale of tobacco to minors and the definition of tobacco product;" 

Page 1, after line 4, insert: 

"SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 12.1-31-03 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1. a. It is an infractiona class B misdemeanor for any person to sell or 
furnish to a minor, or procure for a minor, cigarettes, cigarette papers, 
cigars, snuff, tobacco in any other form in which it may be utilized for 
smoking or chewing, electronic smoking devices, or alternative 
nicotine products. As used in this subdivision, "sell" includes 
dispensing from a vending machine under the control of the actor. 

b. It is an infraction for any person to display or offer for sale cigarettes, 
cigarette papers, cigars, snuff, tobacco in any other form in which it 
may be utilized for smoking or chewing, electronic smoking devices, 
or alternative nicotine products through a self-service display. This 
subdivision does not apply to a: 

(1) Vending machine or other coin-operated machine that is 
permitted under section 12.1-31-03.1; or 

(2) Self-service display that is located in a tobacco specialty store." 

Page 1, after line 12, insert: 

"SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 57-36-01 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

57-36-01. Definitions. 

As used in this chapter, unless the context or subject matter otherwise requires: 

1. "Chewing tobacco" means any leaf tobacco that is intended to be placed in 
the mouth. 

2. "Cigar" means any roll of tobacco wrapped in tobacco. 

3. "Cigarette" means any roll for smoking made wholly or in part of tobacco or 
processed tobacco and encased in any material except tobacco. 
"Cigarette" also means any product of a cigarette-making machine. 

4. "Cigarette-making machine" means a machine used for commercial 
purposes to process tobacco into a roll or tube, formed or made from any 
material other than tobacco, at a production rate of more than five rolls or 
tubes per minute. 

Page No. 1 19.0928.02002 



5. "Consumer" means any person who has title to or possession of 
cigarettes, cigars, pipe tobacco, or other tobacco products in storage, for 
use or other consumption in this state. 

6. "Dealer" includes any person other than a distributor who is engaged in the 
business of selling cigarettes, cigarette papers, cigars, pipe tobacco, or 
other tobacco products, or any product of a cigarette-making machine. 

7. "Distributor" includes any person engaged in the business of producing or 
manufacturing cigarettes, cigarette papers, cigars, pipe tobacco, or other 
tobacco products, or importing into this state cigarettes, cigarette papers, 
cigars, pipe tobacco, or other tobacco products, for the purpose of 
distribution and sale thereof to dealers and retailers. 

8. "Electronic smoking device" means a nonlighted, noncombustible device 
that employs a mechanical heating element, battery. or circuit, regardless 
of shape or size. to produce aerosolized or vaporized nicotine for 
inhalation into the body. "Electronic smoking device" includes a device 
manufactured, distributed. marketed. or sold as an e-cigarette. e-cigar. 
e-pipe. e-hookah. vape pen. or any other similar product. 

9. "Licensed dealer" means a dealer licensed under the provisions of this 
chapter. 

� 10. "Licensed distributor" means a distributor licensed under the provisions of 
this chapter. 

40-:J� "Other tobacco products" means snuff and chewing tobacco. 

4+.-12. "Person" means any individual, firm, fiduciary, partnership, corporation, 
limited liability company, trust, or association however formed. 

� 13. "Pipe tobacco" means any processed tobacco that, because of its 
appearance, type, packaging, or labeling, is suitable for use and likely to 
be offered to, or purchased by, consumers as tobacco to be smoked in a 
pipe. 

43:-14. "Sale" or "sell" applies to gifts, exchanges, and barter. 

44:-15. "Snuff'' means any finely cut, ground, or powdered tobacco that is intended 
to be placed in the mouth. 

4&.-16. "Storage" means any keeping or retention of cigarettes, cigars, pipe 
tobacco, or other tobacco products for use or consumption in this state. 

4&:-17. "Tobacco product" means any product that is made from or derived from 
tobacco. or that contains natural or synthetic nicotine. and is either 
intended for human consumption or is likely to be consumed whether 
smoked. heated. chewed. absorbed. dissolved. inhaled. or ingested by 
other means. "Tobacco product" includes a cigarette. cigar, pipe tobacco. 
chewing tobacco. snuff, snus. an electronic smoking device. and a nicotine 
liquid container as defined in section 12.1-31-03.2. "Tobacco product" does 
not include a drug, device. or combination product. as defined in the Food, 
Drug, and Cosmetic Act [52 Stat. 1040: 21 U.S.C. 301 et seq.] and 
approved for sale by the United States food and drug administration. 
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1JL "Use" means the exercise of any right or power incidental to the ownership 
or possession of cigarettes, cigars, pipe tobacco, or other tobacco 
products." 

Renumber accordingly 
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Module ID: s_stcomrep_57 _015 
Carrier: Bakke 

Insert LC: 19.0928.02001 Title: 04000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1477, as engrossed: Judiciary Committee (Sen. D. Larson, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended , recommends DO PASS 
(6 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AN D NOT VOTING) .  Engrossed H B  1 477 was p laced 
on the S ixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 2 ,  after the semicolon i nsert "to amend and reenact subsection  1 of section 
1 2 . 1 -3 1 -03 of the North Dakota Century Code ,  re lating to proh ibit i ng the sale of 
tobacco to minors ; "  

Page 1 ,  after l i ne 4 ,  insert :  

"SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 1 2 . 1 -3 1 -03  of the North 
Dakota Centu ry Code is amended and reenacted as fo l lows : 

1 .  a .  I t  is an infractiona class B misdemeanor for any person to sel l  or 
furn ish to a minor, or procure for a minor, c igarettes,  cigarette 
papers ,  cigars ,  snuff, tobacco in any other form i n  wh ich it may be 
ut i l ized for smoking or chewing ,  e lectron ic smoking devices, or 
alternative n icotine products. As used in  th is subd iv is ion , "se l l "  
i ncludes d ispensing from a vend ing mach ine u nder the control of the 
actor. 

b .  I t  is an infraction for any person to d isplay or  offer for sale cigarettes, 
cigarette papers ,  cigars ,  sn uff, tobacco in  any other form i n  wh ich it 
may be uti l ized for smoking or chewing ,  e lectron ic smoking devices, 
or alternative n icotine products th rough a self-service d isp lay. This 
subd ivis ion does not apply to a :  

Renumber accord ing ly 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE 

( 1 ) Vending mach ine or other coi n-operated mach ine that is 
permitted under section 1 2 . 1 -3 1 -03 . 1 ;  or 

(2) Self-service d isp lay that is  located i n  a tobacco specia lty store . "  

Page 1 s_stcomrep_57 _015 
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HB  1477 Test imony 

House Human Services Committee 

Robin Weisz, Chairman 

January 21, 2019 

Good Morn i n g  Cha i rman  Weisz and Com m ittee Members :  

For the  record, my name  is  A l i sa M itskog. I rep resent D istr ict 25 .  

H B  1477  i s  a b i l l  t h at wou ld  proh i b it the sa l e  of  fl avored e l i q u i d  such  as  n i coti ne  and  other 
chem ica l s  wh ich i s  so ld as a p roduct that m ay be used i n  a n  e l ectron i c  smok ing device .  

We must pay ser ious attent ion to the recent message from the FDA and the US  Su rgeon 
Genera l  as t hey recent ly have dec la red teen vap ing  an ep idemic .  The FDA says youth vap ing  is 
up 75% in the past year .  I n  November, the FDA d iscussed the poss i b i l ity of a ban on  flavored 
n i coti ne .  M a n ufactu rers have even acknowledged the  p rob lem and  one has  restr icted sa les of 
fl avored n i coti n e  in stores as we l l  as shutt i ng  down the i r  socia l  med ia  accou nts .  One m ight ask 
why a p roh i b it ion  on  fl avored e l i qu ids or  n icot i ne?  It i s  because they have a strong appea l  to 
youth .  Exam p les  of some of the fl avors a re m i nt, strawberr ies & cream, peach,  mango, 
bubb legum,  waterme lon,  wi ld  berry, green app le  to name j u st a few. 

I n  a study  pub l i shed i n  the October 2018 Eu ropean Neu ropsychopharmaco logy Journa l  
conc l uded t he  sweet taste of fl avored e c iga rettes potenti ates the  rei nfo rc i ng  effects of 
n i coti n e  a nd  a l so t a l ked about the effects of fl avor cond it ion i ng .  Other  stud ies have 
i nvest igated the  effects of ado lescent n i coti ne  exposu re and  the  long l a st i ng  neu rochem ica l a nd  
behaviora l c hanges that resu lt .  

Back home  in Wahpeton, I serve on Project Yes, wh ich i s  a commun ity coa l it ion dea l i ng with 
youth r isk behavio rs rega rd i ng  a lcoho l  a nd  smok ing .  Teen vap i ng  has had extens ive focus and  
d iscuss ion the  past severa l months .  Adm i n i strators and  ed ucators a re confiscat i ng  vap ing  
devices on  a regu l a r  bas i s .  Others wi l l  fo l low my test imony with more i nformat ion and  data to 
demonstrate t he  d ramat ic i ncrease in youth vap i ng .  

In  conc l u s ion ,  we need to act to act swiftly to p rotect our youth from a l i fet ime  of add ict ion by 
l im it i ng  the  access to fl avored n i cot ine .  I ask th is  com m ittee to take ser ious cons iderat ion  of 
gett i ng  out in front of these troub l i ng  p rod ucts by pass ing  HB 1477 .  

I 
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Maddy House 

3624 H igh  Creek Road 

B ismarck, N D  58503 

(70 1 )226-5734 

TESTI MONY SUPPORT OF  HOUSE B I LL 1477 

Cha i rman Weisz, and members of the Human Services Comm ittee . 

My name is Maddy House; I am a jun ior at Centu ry H igh  Schoo l .  I am speaking on 
behalf of the Centu ry H igh  School SADD students and the Bismarck Tobacco Free 
Youth Board . I am here to provide test imony in support for House B i l l  1 477 .  

I - -;)_} - I q 

The tobacco industry has in  recent decades began model i ng e lectron ic smoking devices 
to be sleek and v isua l ly appea l ing . Th is look appea ls to the aesthetic that the m i l lenn ia l  
generation va lues and of the I-generation ,  or gen z .  These new models keep vapers 
com ing back to buy the newer product vers ion for the design or capab i l it ies , it is 
comparab le to buy ing the new I Phone . These e-cigarette prod ucts are a lso easi ly 
ava i lab le to m inors at numerous gas stations for 1 8  year olds who are sen iors i n  h igh 
school to s imp ly pu rchase and d istribute , or se l l  for profit , to classmates that are m inors .  
Centu ry H ig h  Schoo l ,  for those of you who don 't know, is located d i rectly across the 
street from the Red Carpet Conven ience Store and Carwash .  

Perhaps the largest success i n  the al leged market ing to youth of b ig tobacco compan ies 
wou ld  be the ava i lab i l ity of appetizing flavored e-l iq u id .  I t  is hard to bel ieve that the sole 
pu rpose of the tobacco industry i nventing electron ic smoking devices is to help smokers 
qu it when there a re over 7 , 000 flavored e-l iqu ids consist ing of flavors l i ke C innabun ,  
b lue raspberry ,  mango ,  and  cotton candy. Because these flavors so  closely resemble 
youth and you ng adu lts favorite candy, pop, and desert , these flavors easi ly catch the 
attent ion and i nterest in m inors .  These flavored prod ucts a lso conta in  n icotine ,  which is 
h i gh ly add ictive and harmfu l to youth b ra in  development .  Start ing a n icoti ne add iction 
young  means costumers for l ife , result ing i n  large profits for tobacco compan ies in  the 
long run .  

To g ive you an  example of how appea l i ng these products are to youth , o n  the second 
page of my testimony you wi l l  see a p ictu re of candy gummy worms next to a pictu re of 
gummy worm flavored e-ju ice .  This is one of many examples of how appea l i ng  these 
p rod ucts a re to you ng peop le .  I am concerned about the use of flavored e-cigarettes 
among youth because vap ing and specifica l ly j uu l i ng has become an epidemic in my 
generation .  

When asked where am I see ing these devices and products used , the rea l  question i s  
where am I not seeing them used by my peers .  I see J U U Ls being consumed by youth 
in cars in the school parking lot, in school bathrooms du ring the day, at parties with 
friends ,  when I ' m  shopp ing , and in the school bath room . These incidents occur more 
often than one may th ink ;  many kids take advantage of substitute teachers to get the ir  
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n icoti ne fix wh i le  in the classroom .  I was once in an advance p lacement class with a 
substitute teacher who caught a student taking h its off the i r  J U U L  du ring class . 

These devices are have l itt le research and are re latively un regu lated .  There are no 
stud ies that are conclus ive regard i ng the long term hea lth effects of these new devices 
and it is a lmost certa in  that the consequences to the use of these p roducts wou ld be 
negative especia l ly to youth . I care about my generation and that is why I am concerned 
about how the tobacco industry is targeting my peers with the i r  add ictive flavored 
prod ucts . 

P lease support House B i l l  1 477 because proh ib it ing the sale of flavored e-l iqu id  cou ld 

keep my peers and North Dakota's youth from a l ifetime of add ict ion to n icotine .  

CAN DY PRODUCT E-LIQU ID  (N icot ine Product) 

• 

• 

• 
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H ouse H u ma n  Serv ices Comm ittee for the 66th N D  Legi s l at ive Assem b ly 

Cha i rman  Weisz, a n d  members of the House H uman  Services Com m ittee, he l l o, my name i s  Heather  
Aust in ,  and I am the  Execut ive Di rector fo r Tobacco F ree North  Da kota . Tha n k  you so much for you r  
t ime  t h i s  morn i ng .  

Today I am he re to encou rage a Do Pass on HB 1477, or  the b i l l  p roh i b it i ng the sa l e  of f lavored 
e- l iq u ids .  The m iss i on  of Tobacco F ree North  Da kota i s  to imp rove and  protect the pub l i c  hea lth of a l l  
No rth  Da kota ns  by red uc ing  the ser ious hea lth and  econom ic  conseq uences of tobacco use, the 
state's n u m ber  one ca use of preventa b le d i sease and death . 

By e l im i nat i ng  the  sa l e  of these flavored e- l i q u id prod ucts i n  No rth  Da kota, we ta ke a tremendous 
step fo rwa rd i n  p rotect i ng  ou r  youth from the  da ngerous n i coti ne add ict ion  these p rod ucts promote. 
We ca n begi n to stem the t ide i n  what the FDA is  now ca l l i ng an "ep idem ic" fo r ou r  youth .  I n  
Septem ber  2018, t h e  FDA re leased i nformation  re l a ted t o  the fl avo r i ngs i n  e- l i q u ids .  The 
Com m iss ione r  stated that certa i n  f lavors may d rive e-ciga rette appea l  to youth a nd  that it is  
u naccepta b le  to a l low add ict ion to n i coti ne to occu r  to a new generat ion . i .  We agree . 

A l though these p rod ucts a re re l at ively new to the market, the  va riety of fl avo rs ava i l a b le  fo r use i n  e
c iga rettes a nd e lect ron i c  devices, has grown exponent i a l ly, now n u m ber ing over 15,500 f lavors . E
c iga rette ma rketi ng emp loys many of the same strategies used for yea rs by c iga rette man ufactu rers 
that  p roved so effect ive in reach i ng k ids, such as ce l eb rity endorsements, s l i ck  TV and  magaz ine  
advert i sements, sports a nd mus i c  sponsorsh i ps, a nd  of  cou rse soc i a l  med i a .  

F l avors a re not j ust a c rit ica l pa rt o f  t he  prod uct des ign,  bu t  a re a key ma rket i ng  p l oy fo r the i ndustry. 
The 2016 Su rgeon Genera l  Report on  e-ciga rettes conc l uded that, " E-ciga rettes a re ma rketed by 
p romot i ng  f lavors a n d  us ing a wide va r iety of med ia  cha n ne l s  a n d  a pproaches that have been used in 
the past for ma rket i ng  conventiona l  tobacco products to youth a nd  you ng adu lts ." i i .  

I n  a dd it ion  t o  the  more trad it iona l  ca ndy and  fru it f lavors l i ke che rry a nd choco l ate, the e- l i qu i d  
so l ut ions a re a l so be ing  so l d  i n  such k id-fri end ly opt ions as cotton ca ndy, root beer  f loat, sou r patch 
k ids, gu m my bea rs, a n d  ba nana  sp l it .  One study even u ncovered ove r twenty d iffe rent types of 
u n icorn-f lavored e- l i q u id ,  often pa i red with ca rtoon imagery, u ndoubted ly a ppea l i ng to k ids . i i i .  

Resea rch s hows t h a t  fl avo red prod ucts - no matter what t he  tobacco product - appea l t o  youth and  
you ng a d u lts .  Data from the  2013-2014 Popu l at ion  Assessment o f  Tobacco a nd  Hea lth ( PATH )  study 
found  that  80 .8 percent of 12- 17 yea r o lds  who had ever used a tobacco prod uct i n it iated tobacco 
use with a fl avored p rod uct, and  that 79 .8  percent of cu rrent tobacco users had  used a fl avored 
tobacco p rod uct in the past month . Moreover, for each tobacco p rod uct, at least two-th i rds  of youth 
report u s i ng these p rod ucts "beca use they come in fl avors I l i ke . " iv .  
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There i s  a ser ious d i sconnect with ou r  k ids be l ievi ng that these fl avored tobacco prod ucts a re \ -J._\�C\, 
somehow safer  tha n t rad it i ona l  c iga rettes or  sta ndard tobacco fl avor .  The yu m my and  fa m i l i a r  P 

• flavo rs give k ids a fa l se sense of secu rity. I n  fact, a nat iona l  phone su rvey found  that  youth ( ages 13-
17) were more l i ke ly  to report i nterest i n  try ing an  e-ciga rette offe red by a fr i end  if i t  were f lavo red 
l i ke fru it, ca ndy or  mentho l ,  com pa red to tobacco. Th is  study a lso fou n d  that  youth be l ieved that  
fru i t-fl avo red e-ciga rettes were less  ha rmfu l tha n tobacco-fl avored e-c iga rettes .v .  

J U U L, the  sta ndout in  the i nd ustry with i ts  ove rwhe l m i ng appea l to our youth,  comes i n  sweet a nd  
fru ity f lavors, s u c h  as  fru it med ley, mango, cool cucu mber a nd creme bru l ee, wh i c h  ma ke it espec ia l ly 
da ngerous, s i n ce 1 t i ny pod i s  t he  eq u iva lence of a n  ent i re pack of 20 c iga rettes .  

Wh i l e  we have much  to learn a bout these new prod ucts, the evidence i s  a l ready c lea r  that i t  i s  u nsafe 
for you ng peop le  to use e-ciga rettes o r  a ny other product conta i n i ng n i coti ne .  As stated by the  
Su rgeon Genera l , "E-c iga rette use poses a s ign ifica nt - and  avo i dab l e  - hea l th  r i s k  to  you ng peop le  i n  
t h e  U n ited States .  Bes ides i n creas i ng  t h e  poss i b i l ity of add ict ion a nd  long-te rm h a rm to  b ra i n  
deve lopment a nd  resp i ratory hea l th ,  e-ciga rette use i s  associated with t h e  use o f  other  tobacco 
prod ucts that  ca n do even more damage to the body."vi . By e l im i nat i ng  f lavo rs, we ca n red uce the  
appea l ,  a nd  u lt i mate ly the  use rate of  a l l  tobacco prod ucts, for our  youth .  

F i na l ly, I wou l d  l i ke to  po i nt out tha t  the tobacco com pa n ies know that  a l most a l l  n ew tobacco users 
beg in  the i r  add ict ion as  k ids, i n  fact 90% of da i ly add icted users sta rted by the  age of 18, b ut the  
i ndustry a lso knows tha t  to novice smokers, tobacco ca n be  ha rsh  a nd  u n a ppea l i ng .  I ntern a l  tobacco 

• industry docu ments show that  tobacco compan ies have a long h i story of us i ng  f lavors to red uce the 
ha rs hness of the i r  p rod ucts to make them more appea l i ng to new users, aga i n , a l most a l l  of whom 
a re under age 18 .vi i .  By mask ing  the h a rshness and sooth ing the i rr itat ion ca used by tobacco smoke 
and/or e- l i q u i d  va pors, f lavo rs make it eas ier  for begi nners - pr ima ri l y  o u r  k ids  - to t ry the  p rod uct 
and  u lt imate ly become add icted . 

With e lect ron i c  p rod uct use at ep idem ic  l eve l s  for ou r  youth, a nd  with new p rod ucts a nd  fl avors 
bei ng i ntrod uced at a l ightn i ng  pace, we ca n't r isk wa it ing for nat i ona l  po l i cy .  We ca n lead the  way i n  
North Da kota b y  p roh i b i t ing t h e  sa l e  of f lavored e- l i qu ids .  W e  ca n l ead  t h e  way i n  p rotect i ng  o u r  
k ids, a nd  that  creates hea l th ie r  youth a nd a hea l th ier  state, and  t h a t  saves l ives . 

Aga i n , tha n k  you fo r th i s  t ime i n  front of you, Cha i rman Weisz and  the  Comm ittee .  I t  is ve ry 
appreciated . P l ease vote Do Pass on  H B  1477 .  

May I ta ke a ny q uest ions? 

Heather  Aust i n  
Executive D i rector, Tobacco F ree No rth  Da kota 
Ce l l :  701-527-2811  
heathe r@tfnd .o rg 
www.tfnd .o rg • 
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i i i .  J a ck le r, R K, a n d  Ra m a m u rth i ,  D .  "Un icorn ca rtoons :  ma rket ing sweet and creamy e-j u ice to youth," Tobacco Control , 
pub l i shed on  l i n e  August 19, 2016 .  

iv .  Ambrose, BK, et a l . , "F l avored Tobacco Product Use Among US  Youth Aged 12-17 Yea rs, 2013-2014," J ou rna l  of the 
America n Med i c a l  Associ at ion ,  pub l i shed on l i ne  October  26, 2015. 

v .  Pepper, J K, et a l . , "Ado lescents' i nterest i n  tryi ng flavou red e-c iga rettes," Tobacco Contro l ,  2 5 : i i 62- i i66, pub l i shed on l i ne  
September  15,  2016 .  

v i .  H HS, Know the  R i s k s :  E-C iga rettes & Young People, accessed Ma rch 15 ,  2018  at https ://e
c iga rettes . su  rgeongene ra I .gov /knowtherisks . htm I .  

v i i .  H H S, P revent ing  Tobacco Use Among Youth and  Young  Adu lts, A Report o f  the Su rgeon Gene ra l ,  2012,  
http ://www.cdc .gov/Featu res/Youth TobaccoUse/ . 

Photo of a ctua l  e-j u ices a n d  e l ectron i c  tobacco devices confi scated d u r i ng  the fa l l  of 
the 2018-2019 schoo l  yea r at a North Da kota H igh Schoo l .  
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Photos of the  J U U L  system - one  of the  most popu l a r  ways youth use fl avored 
tobacco e-j u ices .  
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E-cigarette and E-liquid Flavorings 

Summary 

• The majority of youth who ever tried an e-cigarette used a flavored product for their first use. 1 

• Youth whose first tobacco product was flavored had a higher prevalence of current use compared with youth 

whose first tobacco product was not flavored.2 

• The availabi l ity of flavored e-cigarettes was a top reason for middle and high school students who ever used 

e-cigarettes to begin use . 3 

• In North Dakota, in 20 1 5 , the majority of vape stores assessed carried at least 50  different flavors of e

c igarettes ,  including sweet-sounding flavors, such as lava berry, watermelon, and gummy worms.4 

Background 

North Dakota data 

In the North Dakota e-liquid study ' 1 , 2 items were assessed regarding flavors . F irst was an estimated 

number of e-cigarette flavors sold in each store (n = 1 6  stores). The estimated number of flavorings per store 

were : 

• 7 stores carried more than 1 00, 

• 4 stores carried between 5 1  and 1 00 ,  

• 3 stores carried between 1 1  and 50,  and 

• 2 stores carried 1 0  or fewer flavors. 

The second item assessed was the most popular flavor sold as reported by the store clerk. No specific 

flavor trend was identified. The responses with more than 1 included : Lava Berry (n = 3), Mother' s  Milk (n = 

2), unsure (n = 2) .  These flavors each had 1 response : the flavors that they make in house, watermelon, 

cappuccino, Is land Squeeze, Cloud 1 3 , Burkhart's Brew, Gummy Worms, did not know, and many. 

National or other data 

The use of "flavors" is prohibited in conventional cigarettes ,  except for menthol and tobacco ; however, 

other tobacco products do not have this prohibition .5<P 1 I )  More than 7,700 unique e-cigarette flavorings have 

existed .6 According to the 20 1 6  U .S .  Surgeon General Report (SGR),7 more than 85% of youth e-cigarette users 

between the ages of 1 2  - 1 7  use flavored e-cigarettes and the majority of youth who ever tried an e-cigarette 

used a flavored product for their first use. In March 20 1 8 , the FDA Commissioner8 stated that youth whose first 

tobacco product use was flavored had higher prevalence of current use compared to youth whose first use was 

not flavored. 

-
In 20 1 6 , the availabi l ity of flavored e-cigarettes ,  such as mint, candy, fruit, or chocolate, was the second 

top reason for middle and high school students who ever used e-cigarettes to begin use, with 3 1 .0% reporting 
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this reason.9 The top reason, with 39 .0% reporting, was use by a friend or fami ly member.9 Although not 

related directly to flavorings, the 20 1 6  SGR5 (P6 )  stated that quitting conventional c igarettes was not a primary 

reason for youth using e-cigarettes .  

A 20 1 8  study 1 0  found that youth who used e-cigarettes were significantly more l ikely than adu lts to 

report using a flavored e-cigarette and more l ikely to use fruit flavors. About 4 1  % of youth reported using a 

single flavor, with fruit and candy/other sweets being the most common, and about 39% using more than 1 

flavor in combination, with fruit and candy/other sweets combination being the most common. 

In September 20 1 8 , the FDA 12  released information related to the flavorings in e- l iquids. The 

Commissioner stated that certain flavors may drive e-cigarette appeal to youth and that it is unacceptable to 

al low addiction to nicotine to occur to a new generation . Therefore, the FDA may restrict flavorings in e

cigarettes .  

For more information contact: Kelly Buettner-Schmidt, PhD, RN, FAAN; Kelly.buettner-schmidt@ndsu.edu 

The above is excerpted and/or edited from:  

Buettner-Schmidt, K.  (20 1 8 , December 1 4) .  £-cigarettes and e-liquids: Public health implications for youth and addiction. (Revised 
edition) .  Fargo : School of Nursing, North Dakota State University. 

Buettner-Schmidt, K. (20 1 8 , December 1 4  ). £-cigarettes and e-liquids: Public health implications for youth and addiction. A I a 
Glance. (Revised edition). Fargo, ND:  School of Nursing, North Dakota State University. 
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The American  Vap ing Associat ion  

www.va p i ng . o rg 70 Hem lock St, Stra tfo rd, CT 06615 

January 21 , 201 9 

RE :  H B  1 477,  a b i l l  re lat i ng  to proh ib it ing  the sale of flavored e - l iqu id  

H l3 I Y '7 7  
M i-.J 
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P l · 

(609 )  947 - 8059 

Cha i rman We isz,  Vice-Cha i r  Rohr ,  and d isti ngu ished mem bers of the H u m a n  Serv ices Comm ittee :  

On behalf  of the Amer ican Vap ing  Association ,  a nonprofit organ izat ion that advocates for po l ic ies that encou rage 
adu l t  smokers who are unw i l l i ng  or unab le  to qu it smok ing to switch to reduced r isk n i coti ne products , I am writ i ng 
to u rge the com m i ttee to reject H B  1 477 ,  which wou ld  ban the sa le of e- l i qu i ds  used i n  vap ing products by 80%
plus of adu lt vapers i n  the U n ited States . N either pub l i c  hea lth nor N orth Dakota sma l l  bus i nesses wi l l  be served 
by prevent i ng  ad u lt smoke rs from access ing less harmful  a l ternat ives to trad i t iona l  com b u st ib le  c igarettes .  

I .  Vap ing prod u cts are much less harmful than smoking and are help ing adult smokers qu i t  

• Over forty years ago ,  Dr .  M ichael  Russe l l  wrote i n  the Bri t ish Med ica l  Jou rna l ,  "Smokers smoke for the 
n icoti n e ,  bu t  d ie from the tar . " Wh i l e  n icot ine can create dependence i n  users ,  i t  i s  not a carcinogen and 
does not mean i ngfu l l y  contr ibute to the death and d i sease that is  pri nc ipa l l y  caused by the hab itual  
i n ha lat ion of c iga rette smoke .  

• On January 1 9 , 2 0 1 9 ,  Food & Drug Ad m i n istration Commiss ioner  Dr .  Scott Gottl ieb reite rated h is posit ion 
on the benefits of vap ing  by adu lts , tweeti n g ,  " I  be l i eve if every cu rrent l y add icted adu l t  smoker switched 
com plete ly  to e-c igs it wou ld  prov ide a tremendous pub l i c  health ga i n . "  

• Researchers from the American Heart Association , work ing  from a samp le  s ize of over 460 ,000 
Amer icans ,  est im ated that 7 .6% of al l  ex-smokers i n  the U n ited States (4.4 m i l l ion adu lts ) had vaped in 
the past month , with 5% of al l  ex-smokers be ing da i l y  vapers (3  m i l l i on  peop le ) . 1 

• A 26-month stud y  of 1 5 , 943 adu l t  smokers undertaken by the Centers for D i sease Contro l & Prevent ion 
(CDC)  fou n d  that vap ing  i s  the most popu lar  method of q u itt i ng  smok ing i n  the Un ited States .  
Fu rthermore ,  smokers u s i n g  vapor products were m ore l i ke ly t o  successfu l l y  qu i t  versus  those w h o  used 
convent iona l  m ethods l i ke the n i coti ne gum and patch . 2 

• Respected i nternat i ona l  bod ies ,  i nc lud ing  the Roya l  Co l lege of Phys ic ians  and  Pub l i c  Health Eng land , 
have pub l i shed expert reports est imat ing that vap ing  carr ies n o  more than 5% the r isk of smoki ng .  

• The U . S .  N ati ona l  Academy of Sciences (NAS) extens ive ly stud ied the hea lth effects of vap ing prod ucts 
and conc luded that vap ing  wi l l  resu lt in an overa l l  pub l i c  hea lth benefit under  the most p laus ib le  
scenarios . 

1 M .  M i rbo louk ,  et al. "P reva lence and D istri but ion of E-C igarette Use Among U .S .  Ad u lts : Behav iora l  R isk  Facto r Survei l l ance 
System ,  20 1 6 . Anna l s  of I nterna l  Med ic ine . "  Ann .  I ntern Med . http : //a nna ls .o rg/a im/art ic le-abstract/2698 1 1 2/preva lence
d i stri bution -e-ciga rette-use-among-u-s-adu lts-behaviora l 

2 R. Caraba l l o ,  et al. "Qu it Methods Used by US Ad u l t  C iga rette Smokers ,  20 1 4-20 1 6 . "  P rev C h ron ic  D i s  20 1 7 ; 1 4 : 1 60600 . 
https ://www.cdc .gov/pcd/ i ssues/20 1 7  / 1 6_0600 . htm 



I I .  The I m portance of F lavors to Ad u lts has been Demonstrated 

• A study us i ng  d ata from the FDA's m u lt i -year ,  popu lat ion- level PATH study found  that among adu lts aged 
25 or  o lder ,  those us i ng  candy or sweet vap ing  flavors were twice as  l i ke ly  to be tryi ng  to q u it com busti b le 
tobacco . Moreover, among ex-smokers who reported that e-cigarettes he l ped with the i r  smoking 
cessatio n ,  more respondents used fru it than any other flavor type . 3 

• Researchers from the Yale School of Pub l i c  Health and  other i n st itut ions conducted an  FDA-funded study 
of  2 , 03 1 a d u lt s mokers and recent q u itters . The study concl uded that  ban n i ng  f lavors i n  vap ing prod ucts 
wou ld  resu l t in i ncreases in smok ing , with the g reatest increase com ing  i f  menthol  c igarettes were n ot 
a lso banned (as i s  the case with th is  b i l l ) .4 

• A se lf-se lected s u rvey of 69 ,223 vapers from the U n ited States found  that among the 8 1 . 3% of 
respondents who were former smokers ,  j ust 7 .7% and 1 2 . 8 %  of these exc lus ive vapers used tobacco or 
mentho l  f lavors , respective ly .  Ex-smokers and dual  users overwhe lm ing l y  preferred flavors categorized as 
fru� .  dessert ,  or sweet. 5 

I l l .  Better Enforcement i s  the Answer, Not Bans & New Taxes 

In the next month ,  F DA Commiss ioner Scott Gottl ieb  i s  expected to offic ia l l y  re lease new pol icy g u idance that wi l l  
restrict the reta i l  sa le  of a l l  fl avored vap ing  products (other than tobacco , m i nt ,  and  menthol ) to  adu lt-on ly  
env i ronments l i ke  vape shops .  Dr .  Gottl ieb be l ieves th i s  federal  po l icy change and  other  agency actions wi l l  he l p 
str ike a ba lance between  the goa ls  of preventi ng youth n icoti ne  i n i t iat ion and  ensuri ng  adu l t  smokers have access 
to sati sfyi ng and effective a lternat ives . 6 

North Dakota shou ld  r igorous ly  enforce its ex isti ng  ban on  the sa le of a l l  n icot ine and tobacco prod ucts to m inors .  
However,  n e w  restr ict ions on  flavored non-combusti b le  products are not j ustified by t h e  sc ience that exists today.  
I ndeed , the sc ience suggests that because flavored vaping prod ucts and other non-com busti b le opt ions a re 
he lp i ng  to red uce and  denorma l ize smok i n g ,  bann i ng  flavored e- l i qu ids  wou ld  actua l l y  do g reat harm . 

P lease reject H B  1 4  77 and  keep flavored smoke-free a lternatives ava i l ab le  to adu lts i n  North Dakota . 

S incerely ,  

Gregory Con ley ,  J . D . ,  M . B .A. 
Pres ident 
Amer ican Vap i ng  Associat ion  

3 S .  Somej i ,  et al. " F l avor P reference Among Adolescent ,  Young Adu l t ,  and Adu l t  E-Ciga rette Users :  F i nd i ngs  From Wave 2 of 
the Popu lat ion Assessment  of Tobacco and Hea lth Study . "  Poster SYM?D .  P resented at SRNT 2 0 1 8 .  

4 John B uckel l ,  J oach i m  Mart i , and  Jody  L . S i nde lar ,  "Shou ld  F lavors Be Banned i n  E-C igarettes? Evidence on Adu l t  Smokers 
and Recent Qu i tte rs from a D iscrete Cho ice Experiment . "  Nat iona l  Bu reau of Econom ic  Research .  September 20 1 7 . 
http : //www .nber .o rg/papers/w23865 . pdf. 

5 J i m  McDona l d .  " Fa rsa l i nos Su rvey Shows Vapers Prefer Fru i t  and Dessert F lavors . "  Vap ing360 . Aug ust 1 3 , 20 1 8 . 
https : //va p ing360 . com/vape-news/69440/fa rsa l i nos-su rvey-shows-vapers-prefer-fru it-and-dessert-flavo rs/ 

6 Wh i le we a re supportive of the F DA's m iss ion to reduce youth vap ing ,  we rema in  concerned that FDA's po l i cy sh ift wi l l  have 
a d isp roport ionate negat ive effect on adu l t  smokers in rura l  states l i ke North Dakota , as many res idents l ive in count ies that do 
not have adu l t-on ly  tobacco or n i coti ne stores . 
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Testimony- HB 1 477 

January 2 1 ,  20 1 9- House Human Services 

Chairman Weisz and Members of the House Human Services Committee : 

For the record , I 'm  Mike Rud, President of the North Dakota Petro leum Marketers Association .  

On behalf of NDPMA I urge a "DO NOT PASS" recommendation on HB 1 477. 

There are over 700 convenience stores in  ND on the front l ines when i t  comes to tobacco sales .  

As you 've al l heard from us before, retai lers take the sale of tobacco products very serious ly ,  

including e-cigs and associated products such as the e- l iquids, especia l ly when it comes to 

minors . ND retai lers have no desire to see kids get hooked on tobacco products . But the real ity 

remains tobacco products are legal products consumers of the appropriate age are demanding . 

As I ' ve stated before, shouldn ' t  personal responsib i l i ty trump soc ial  engineering? When does i t  

become the respons ib i l i ty of an individual to make the right and legal dec i s ion? Prohibit ion has 

never been the cure a l l  in our great country . 

Supporters of  thi s  proposal argue doing away with the flavored e- l iquids wi l l  stop kids from 

Getting started or hooked on e-cigarettes . It ' s  important to keep in mind, that a decade ago, 

these same groups pushing this  b i l l  today were spreading the word in these hal l s  e-cigs would 

some day be one of the keys to curbing tobacco use and now, national experts agree . 

Although the e-vapor category i s  relatively new, some publ ic  health and tobacco 

contro l researchers have reached the pre l iminary conc lusion that e-vapor products 

may present a compe l l ing risk reduction opportunity compared to combust ib le  

c igarettes .  

1 0 1 4  E a s t  Centra l Avenue • P O  B o x  1 95 6  • B i smarck, N D  58502 • 70 1 -22 3 -3 3 70 • Fax 701 -22 3 -5 004 
Web Address :  n d reta i l . o rg • ndpetro leum .org 
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In  a recent letter to the World Health Organization ,  53 global experts on nicotine policy stated: 

"The potential for tobacco harm reduction products to reduce the burden of smoking 
related disease is very large, and these products could be among the most significant 
health innovations of the 21st Century-perhaps saving hundreds of millions of 
lives . "  

Approximate ly 50% of adult cigarette smokers demonstrate an interest in innovative 

nicotine products, such as e-vapor. Approximate ly 90% of adult e-vapor consumers 

report using flavored products .  North Dakota should respect the preferences of 

adult consumers to use flavored products, especial ly when they could p lay a ro le in 

reduc ing tobacco-re lated harm . 

Any regulat ion of flavors should occur at the federal level in the context of FDA 

product regulation .  Congress empowered FDA to estab l i sh tobacco product 

standards such as restricting flavors only if  FDA determines that such act ion would 

be appropriate for the protection of the publ ic  health based on science and evidence . 

Congress i s  now in a position to consider al l of these material s and del i berate on the 

pol icy impl ications . Suppo11 this process of developing a national policy on this issue, 

instead of a patchwork of inconsistent state and local laws. 

NDPMA asks for a "DO NOT PASS" recommendation on HB 1 477 . 



HB 1477 Testimony 

Senate Judiciary Committee 

Senator Larson, Chairperson 

March 19, 2019 

Good Morn ing Chairman Larson and Committee Members :  

For the record , my name is Al isa Mitskog . I represent District 25.  

HB 1477 , i n  its orig ina l  form , would have prohib ited the sale of flavored e l iqu id which is sold 
as a product that may be used in an electron ic smoking device. The House amended the bi l l  
to impose a fine of 500 .00 for the sale to anyone under 1 8 . 

One might ask why a proh ib ition on flavored e l iqu ids or n icotine? It is because flavored 
nicotine has a strong appeal to youth . Examples of some of the flavors are mint, strawberries 

& cream ,  peach , mango, bubblegum , watermelon , wild berry, g reen apple to name just a few. 
I n  a study publ ished in the October 201 8 European Neuropsychopharmacology Journal 
concluded the sweet taste of flavored e cigarettes potentiates the reinforcing effects of n icotine 
and a lso has an effect on flavor condition ing . 

Late in the fal l  of 20 1 8 , the FDA and the US Surgeon General  declared teen vaping an 
epidemic. In the 201 8 National  Youth Tobacco Survey, there was a 78% increase in cu rrent e
cigarette use among h igh  school students and a 48% increase among m idd le school students . 
The rap id ly r is i ng  popu la rity of h igh-n icot ine e-l i qu ids th reatens to add ict a generat ion  of 

youth . 

I n  speak ing  with schoo l  adm in istrators , teachers ,  S ROs ,  a youth pastor ,  and  h i gh  school  
students , they have a l l  shared with me the seriousness of th is  issue .  I have heard of a 
h igh  schoo l  tak i ng  doors off bath room sta l l s  because of the widespread vap i ng  that is  
occu rri ng  i n  the school  restrooms . A m idd le  school  i n  Arizona recent ly i nsta l led 20 vape 
detectors in the bath rooms due to widespread vap ing  by 7th and 8th g rade students and 
due  to  students avoid ing going to the bathroom out of fear they'd encounter other students 

vaping and worried they wou ld be falsely accused and suspended from schoo l .  

Keep ing flavored n i coti ne  out of the hands out of young  peop le  needs to be of the 

h ighest p rio rity . In the last week, the FDA has ro l led out a p roposed vap i ng  po l i cy to 
restri ct access to flavored n icoti ne p rod ucts . P res ident Trump  has p roposed 1 00m i l l ion  
do l l a rs i n  user  fees for e-ciga rettes to  add ress the  issue .  I n  the face of this youth n icotine 
epidemic, we need to act to act swiftly to protect our youth from a l ifetime of add iction and l imit 
the access to flavored n icotine. 

I ask this committee to take serious consideration of this issue by getting out in front of these 
troubl ing products by amending HB 1 477 to prohib it the sale of flavored n icotine to anyone 
under the age of 2 1 . Thank you .  

\ 
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Trump wants the e-cigarette industry to pay $100 million 
a year in user fees 

The fees , if a pp roved by Congress , wou l d pay fo r federa l  

ove rs ight .  

By Laurie McGin ley 

March 11 at 4:38 PM 

The e-cigarette industry would pay $100 million a year in user fees under the Trump 

administration budget proposal released Monday. The funds would go to beefed-up regulatory 

oversight by the Food and Drug Administration. 

E-cigarettes are not subject to such fees now, but several other types of tobacco products are, 

including cigarettes, cigars and snuff. The agency is expected to collect an estimated $712 

million in user fees in the current fiscal year, with cigarettes accounting for more than 86 

percent of the amount. 

President Trump's budget plan said the user-fee proposal for the e-cigarette industry "would 

ensure that FDA has the resources to address today's alarming rise in youth e-cigarette use as 

well as new public health threats of tomorrow. " 

Overall, the administration is asking for $6 .1  billion in FDA funding, a $418.5 million boost 

over current law. A big chunk, $2.8 billion, involves user fees from the drug, device and other 

industries, as well as the proposed e-cigarette fee. The budget request includes increases to 

promote medical-product innovation, food safety and blood-supply safety. 

The FDA's Center for Tobacco Products is funded entirely by user fees . Extending the 

requirement to e-cigarettes would provide more resources as the agency tries to combat youth 

vaping and assesses the risks and benefits of e-cigarettes for adults. 

The proposed fees on the e-cigarette industry would be imposed on manufacturers and 

importers of vaping devices and e-liquids . The change would have to be approved by Congress, 

administration officials said. 



Liz Mair, a strategist for Vapers United, criticized the user-fee proposal. "This is a tax, not a 

'user fee,"' she said. "'User fee' is lingo that Republicans and conservative Democrats use when 

they're about to hike taxes but don't want to admit that's what they're doing." She added that 

the government should pursue policies to keep vaping taxes low to encourage adult smokers to 

switch to e-cigarettes. 

In a statement, FDA Commissioner Scott Gottlieb acknowledged e-cigarettes may be useful tool 

for adult smokers wanting to quit regular cigarettes, but said they must be put through 

"regulatory gates" to assess their risks and benefits . However, "no child should be using an e

cigarette, "  he said, because researchers still are investigating the long-term effects of e-cigarette 

use, such as whether vaping ingredients can harm the lungs. 

jt I 
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Matthew Myers, president of Campaign for Tobacco-Free Kids, was cautious, noting that details 

on the proposal were sparse. "This is a potentially positive development, " he said, "but it 

doesn't detract from the need for the FDA to take strong mandatory action to rein in the 

behavior and products that have caused the youth epidemic." He said the FDA should ban all 

flavored e-cigarettes and require the companies to curb their marketing. 

ADVERTI S I N G  

Sen. Jeanne Shaheen (D-N.H) welcomed the proposal, noting i t  was similar to legislation she 

recently introduced. "I hope to work with the administration as I rally bipartisan support for my 

legislation in Congress," she said. 
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Concerns at the FDA about youth vaping skyrocketed after federal data showed that e-cigarette 

use among high school students rose 78 percent between 2017 and 2018.  Officials say they want 

to prevent a new generation of children from becoming addicted to nicotine, which they say 

raises the risk they will eventually smoke regular cigarettes. 

Under the administration proposal, the Center for Tobacco Products would receive $812 

million in user fees for the next fiscal year. 

Laurie McGin ley 

La u ri e  McG i n l ey covers hea lth a n d  med i c i n e  fo r The Wash i ngton Post. She  focuses o n  the  Food and  Drug 

Ad m i n istrat ion  as  wel l as cancer  resea rch and treatment. She  was p revi ous ly  The Post 's  hea lth ,  sc ience 

and env i ron ment ed ito r . Fo l l ow W 

Reporting the facts for over 140 years. 

Try 1 month for S±G $1 

Send me this offer 

Already a subscri ber? Sign in 
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FDA unveils sweeping anti-tobacco effort to reduce underage vaping and smoking 

Agency ta rgets e-c iga rettes , fl avored c iga rs a nd mentl1o l  
c iga rettes . 
By Laurie McGlnley and 

Lenny Bernstein 

November 15, 2018 

The Food and Dmg Administration on Thursday launched a multipronged attack on the rising underage 

use of tobacco products, imposing sales restrictions on flavored e-cigarettes and announcing plans to 

ban menthol cigarettes and flavored cigars. 

The FDA says it will limit sales of many flavored e-cigarettes to bricks-and-mortar outlets that have 

either age-restricted entry or areas inside stores that are not accessible to people under 18. The agency 

also will require stepped-up age verification for ouline sales. 

"Our aim is to make sure no kid can access a fmity flavor product in a convenience store," FDA 

Commissioner Scott Gottlieb said. He added that stores that want to sell fruit-flavored e-cigarette 

products "need to age-restrict completely or have a separate room that is age-verified. A curtain or a 

partition won't cut it." Agency officials said they believe that vape and tobacco shops will not have 

trouble complying. 

The new sales restrictions reflect health experts' concerns that e-cigarette use could lead to nicotine 

addiction early in life and affect the developing adolescent brain and that some e-cigarette users will go 

on to smoke more dangerous regular cigarettes. The agency also said it will go after products marketed 

to children - through the use of cartoon characters, for example. 

ore significant than the e-cigarette steps are the FDA's commitments to propose bans ou menthol in 

cigarettes and cigars, as well as other flavors in cigars. Such prohibitions will require new regulations 

that could take years to go into effect and could be derailed by opposition from the cigarette industry. If 

successful, though, the bans could have an especially large impact on African American adults and 

youth, who smoke menthol cigarettes and flavored cigars at higher rates than other groups. 

The tobacco blueprint was released by Gottlieb as the government published new data showing a surge 

in e-cigarette use among minors. The 2018 National Youth Tobacco Survey, by the FDA and the Centers 

for Disease Control and Prevention, found that vaping had increased 78 percent among high school 

students since last year and almost 48 percent among middle schoolers; 3.6 million youngsters reported 

vapiug at least once in the previous 30 days. 

Especially concerning to officials was a sharp rise in regular use. Almost 28 percent of high school 

vapers said they used e-cigarettes at least 20 days a month, and most used flavored products. 

''The bottom line is this: I will not allow a generatiou of children to become addicted to nicotine through 

e-cigarettes," Gottlieb said, while calling on compauies to remove the affected products within 90 days 

from stores that children can enter and from onliue sites that don't have adequate age-velification 

procedures. He said the new policy was designed to get to the "core" of the issue - flavored nicotine 

products, often in fruity, sweet and creamy flavors, that appeal to kids. The restrictions do not affect 

mint, menthol and tobacco flavored e-cigarette products. 

The FDA's moves on menthol cigarettes and flavored cigars drew widespread praise. But its actions on 

e-cigarettes were more controversial. Public health experts and Democratic lawmakers lauded the 

vaping moves as a first step but said they didn't go far enough. For example, Sen. Richard Durbin 

D-III.) said the agency was fiually "moving in the right direction" on e-cigarettes but called on Gottlieb 

o immediately ban all kid-flieudly flavors. Meanwhile, Sen. Ron Johnson (R-Wis.), endorsing the view 
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of many vaping advocates, said that the FDA effort could hurt adult smokers who use e-cigarettes to try 

to quit regular cigarettes. 

''The proposal to prohibit the sale of menthol cigarettes and flavored cigars bas the potential to have a 

greater impact on youth tobacco use and tobacco use among African Americans than any regulatory 

measure ever undertaken by the federal government," said Matt Myers, president of the Campaign for 

Tobacco-Free Kids. But, he said, the e-cigarette actions "fall short of what's needed." In particular, he 

said, he is worried that some convenience stores will continue to sell the flavored e-cigarettes "by 

creating an ineffective artificial barrier." 

Robin Koval, chief executive of Truth Initiative, a tobacco-control group, also praised the planned 

menthol and cigar bans but said it was a mistake to exempt mint and menthol e-cigarettes from the 

plauned sales restrictions, given that data shows those flavors are becoming increasingly popular among 

high schoolers. Public health groups want a ban on all flavored cigarettes, at least until manufacturers 

can prove the items benefit public health. 

But Gottlieb insisted that the exclusion of mint and menthol reflected a "careful balancing" of concems 

about youth and the needs of adult smokers using e-cigarettes to quite smoking. And he said he would 

consider restricting those exempted flavors if youth use didn't decline. 

Lyle Beckwith, senior vice president of NACS, which represents convenience stores, said his group 

would review the proposal carefully but that "sound regulation should ensure that e-cigarettes are sold 

responsibly and that the market is a level playiug field." He also said that any ban on menthol cigarettes 

would simply shift sales of those products to the black market. 

The 2009 tobacco-control act banned all flavors in traditional cigarettes except menthol; the law left 

that to the FDA. Part of the reason that menthol was left out of the law was because of a split in the black 

community. For years, the tobacco industry has donated money to black interests such as the 

Cougressioual Black Caucus Foundation and marketed heavily to African Americans. But FDA, while 

long debating a men tho! ban, never proposed one. 

Black organizations applauded a menthol ban ,  noting that almost 90 percent of African American 

smokers choose menthols. "While we're saddened by the number of lives lost and new smokers addicted 

over the past decade, we're pleased that the FDA is moving in this direction," said Delmonte Jefferson, 

executive director of the National African American Tobacco Prevention Network. The statement also 

was signed by the National Urban League, the National Association for the Advancement of Colored 

People and other groups. 

Ju a statement, the R.J. Reynolds Tobacco company, which makes the nation's best-selling menthol 

cigarette, Newport, said research does not support differing regulations for menthol and non-menthol 

cigarettes and hinted at the possibility of a lawsuit. 

• Any regulation of menthol in cigarettes must be done through the established comprehensive 

rulemaking process and must be based on a thorough review of the science while considering the 

unintended consequences of any rnle," the company said. "Failing to do so would mean any such action 

would not withstand judicial review." 

Gottlieb, in pursuing bis tobacco strategy, is taking some flak from fellow conservatives. "The 

administration promised less regulation - without sacrificing protections," said Jeff Stier, a senior 

fellow at the Consumer Choice Center. "So if the FDA fails to meet both objectives - by announcing a 

heavy-handed regulatory plan - President Trump should realize that the current leadership at the FDA 

is not equipped to implement the administration's policy agenda." But Gottlieb's boss, Health and 

Human Services Secretary Alex Azar signaled his support for the FDA in a statement. 

The FDA's e-cigarette crackdown already has had an impact. Juul Labs, which accounts for more than 

70 percent of e-cigarette retail sales and has been blamed by the FDA for much of the rise in underage 

1se, announced this week that it would stop selling most of its flavored e-cigarette pods - specifically, 

mango, frnit, creme and cucumber - in 90,000 retail outlets, and enhance its onliue protections. The 
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Dakota I Hea lth 

Be Legendary.� 

House B i l l  1 477 

Senate Jud icia ry Committee 

March 1 9, 20 1 9, 1 1  :00 a .m . 

Good morn i ng ,  Cha i rman La rson  a nd  mem bers of the  Senate J ud i c i a ry 

Com m ittee .  My name i s  Ne i l  C h a rvat, a nd  I a m  the D i recto r of the Tobacco 

P revent ion  and Contro l  P rog ram fo r the No rth Da kota Depa rtment of H ea l th .  

I am here to  provide  testimony i n  s u pport of House B i l l  1 477 .  

Tobacco prevent i on  and contro l  effo rts in  No rth Da kota focus  on  g u i da nce 

p rov ided by the Cente rs fo r D i sease P revent i on  and Contro l (CDC) Best 

Practices for Comprehensive Tobacco Control Programs (Best P ract i ces) . Best 

P ract ices p rov ides evi dence- based i ntervent i on s  to p revent tobacco p rod uct 

use  i n i t iat i on ,  i n c rease qu itti ng  tobacco use, a nd  red uce exposu re to 

second hand  smoke .  House B i l l  1 477 p roh i b i ts the  s a l e  of f l avored e - l i q u i d  to 

m i no rs and  i n c reases the fi ne  fo r se l l i ng these p rod ucts .  P roh i b i t i ng  the s a l es 

of f lavored e - l i q u id ,  o r  e l ectro n i c  n i cot i ne  de l ivery systems ( EN DS) to m i no rs, 

wi l l  ass ist in p revent i ng tobacco product use  fo r youth . 

I n  20 1 7, more tha n one  i n  fou r  (28 .8%) h i g h schoo l  students reported u s i ng  

tobacco prod ucts d u r i ng  the 30  d ays befo re t he  su rvey (N D Youth R i sk  

Behavio r  Su rvey) . Th i s  i nc l udes c i ga rettes, c i g a rs, smoke l ess  tobacco, o r  E N DS 

e i ther  a l one  o r  i n  some com b i nat i on .  Add it i o n a l ly, ado l escent use of E N DS 

has  s i g n ifi cant ly i nc reased from 1 . 6 percent i n  20 1 1 to 1 9 . 1  percent i n  20 1 7  

(N D Youth Tobacco Su rvey) . J U U L, a n  E N DS d ev i ce  resem b l i ng a com puter  

U S B  sto rage  devi ce, has  ta ken ove r a l m ost t h ree -q u a rte rs of the  E N DS 

ma rket i n  j u st a few yea rs. J U U L  ha s  ca u sed w idesp read  concern  beca use  of 

i ts popu l a r i ty with youth .  On Septembe r  1 2, 20 1 8, the Food a nd  D rug  

Ad m i n i strat ion  (FDA) dec la red t h a t  youth  u se  o f  EN DS ha s  reached " noth i n g  

s ho rt o f  a n  ep i dem i c  p roport i o n  o f  g rowth . "  Th i s  was fo l l owed by  the  

December  1 8, 20 1 9  U n i ted States S u rg eo n  Gene ra l  adv i sory on  the E 

c i g a rette ep idem ic  among youth .  I nc rea s i ng  a ny restr i ct ions  of  the s a l e  of  

e l ectron i c  prod ucts, i nc l ud i ng  f l avo red e - l i q u i d s, wi l l  he lp  red uce youth 

i n i t iat ion  of tobacco prod ucts .  

I t  i s  i m po rta nt to treat E N DS p rod u cts, i n c l u d i n g  e - l i q u i d s, a s  the tobacco 

p rod ucts they a re .  The Tobacco P revent i o n  and Contro l P rog ra m v i ews E N DS 

a s  tobacco p rod ucts, so u s i ng  these p rod u cts a s  a rep l acement  fo r 

c i g a rettes i s  not q u i tt i ng  tobacco, but  mere ly  a s u bst i tut i o n .  The E N DS 

1 
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i n d u st ry i s  mak i ng  effo rts to confuse  the  d efi n i t i on  of "to bacco"  p rod ucts 

a n d  " n i cot i ne"  p rod ucts .  Accord i n g  to the  J U U L  La bs webs i te :  " N i cot i ne  is a 

st i m u l a nt that  co mes fro m the  to bacco p l a nt .  We use  h i g h ly pu r i f ied/U S P  

g rade/p ha rmaceut i ca l g rade  n i cot i ne "  a n d  " N o  tobacco - based n i cot i ne  e 

l i q u i d p rod uct s h o u l d  b e  co n s i d e red safe . "  The re s h o u l d  b e  no  confu s i o n  

a bout  t h e  sou rce o f  n i coti ne  fo r these  p rod u cts .  

The re a re hea l th  ca re advocates that e m b race  E N DS as  a h a r m  red u ct i o n  

p rod uct t o  he l p  cu rb t h e  t housa n d s  o f  d eaths  d i rect ly  ca u sed b y  c i g a rette 

use .  They a re so focused o n  t h i s  po i n t, t hey a re ove r l ook i ng  the  b i gge r  

p i ctu re:  E N DS a re not p roven to  be a safe a n d  effect ive too l  fo r rep l a c i n g  

s m o ki ng o r  q u i tt i ng  smok i n g .  

T h e  cu r rent  FDA app roved n i cot i n e  rep l a cement  t he ra py (N RT) p rod u cts a re 

d es i g ned to h e l p  peo p l e  a d d i cted to n i cot i ne  q u i t t he i r a dd i ct i on  by 

g ra d u a l ly stepp i ng  down strength  l eve l s  of n i cot i ne .  The d iffe rence between  

E N DS a n d  N RT i s  t h a t  the  N RT p rod u cts have g o n e  t h rou g h  r ig o rou s  F DA 

test i ng  to p rove safety and eff i cacy. Desp ite be i ng  i n  ex i s tence fo r ove r 1 0  

yea rs, no E N DS dev i ces have bee n a p p roved by the  F DA as  a cessat i o n  

med icat i on .  

The  FDA i s  i nvest ig at i ng  t he  poss i b i l i ty o f  a p p rovi ng  othe r  to bacco p rod u cts 

as " mod if ied r i s k" p rod ucts, d ef i ned as someth i n g  that  ca n be u sed i n stead 

of c i g a rettes beca use  they m ay ca u se  l ess  d eath  a nd d i sease  than c i g a rettes 

do .  Th i s  is refe rred to as  " ha rm red u ct i on " .  The  tobacco i n d u st ry, the  E N DS 

i nd u st ry, m a ny hea l th o rga n izat i on s  a n d  cou nt r i es (s u ch  a s  the  U n ited 

K i n g d o m) have emb raced t h i s  concept .  Stu d ies  p rov id ed to s u pport these  

effo rts l a ck  the  cu rrent l eve l of s c i e nt i f i c  p roof to co n c l u s ive ly  demo nst rate 

the safety of these p rod ucts .  Vag u e  stu d ies  a n d  a n ecd ota l ev i de nce do not 

wa rra nt e m b rac i ng  E N DS to save l ives .  

Switc h i ng fro m c i ga rettes to E N DS i s  me re l y  c ha n g i n g  the d e l ive ry method  

fo r n i cot i ne  a d d i ct ion .  New stud ies  s h ow tha t  th i s  i s  an  a ctu a l  t re n d .  O u r  

own tobacco cessat i on  serv i ce, N DQu i ts, h a s  a l ower s u ccess rate fo r peo p l e  

t o  q u i t s m o k i n g  w h o  cont i n u e  t o  u se  E N DS (3 3 .2% vs .  2 2 . 5 %  30 -day 

a bst i ne nce rate at 7 -month fo l l ow- u p) .  The  F DA has  d i scu ssed p l a n s  to 

i d ent i fy mod if ied - r i s k  ve rs u s  fu l l - r i s k  tobacco p rod ucts .  H oweve r, p l a ns  a n d  

stu d i es that  u s e  t h e  wo rd s " m ay b e  sa fe r, "  " may b e  l ess  d a ng e rous "  a n d  
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other  s im i l a r  statements do  not co rre l ate to s u ccess i n  sav i ng  l ives .  The  FDA 

ha s  effective ly defe rred com p rehen s ive reg u l at i o n  of EN DS p rod u cts u nt i l 

2022 .  

I n  the  sho rt t i me that E N DS h ave been in  ex iste nce, we have seen i n c reased 

n i cot i ne a dd i ct i on  in  youth ,  po i so n i ng s  a mong  youth and a d u l ts, a n d  

exp lod i ng  dev ices .  A new study re l eased by t h e  U n ivers ity o f  Ca l i fo rn ia ,  S a n  

F ra nc i sco re l a tes E N DS use t o  i n c reased r i s ks o f  myoca rd i a l  i nfa rct i on s  

(hea rt attacks) . I t  took med i ca l  s c i ence 40 yea rs to  i d ent i fy the  neg at ive 

i m pact of c i ga rette smok i ng  on popu l at i on s .  Wi thout  c l ea r  d ata to p rove t he  

safety o f  EN DS, i t  wou l d  be p rematu re to  p romote these d ev i ces a s  a safe 

a l ternat ive to n i cot i ne  use .  

Fo r  these rea sons, we a s k  you to s u pport passage  of HB 1 477 .  Th i s  

conc l u des my  test i mony. I am h appy to  a n swer a ny q uest i on s  you may have . 
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C-Tobacco Free 
� No-rttv D� 

March  19, 2019 
1 1 :00 am CST 

P .O .  Box 3237 
Bisma rck, ND 58502 

701-751-0229 
www.tfnd .org 

House F i n ance and  Taxation Com m ittee fo r the  66th N D  Leg is l at ive Assem b ly 

Cha i rwoman  La rson,  and mem bers of the Senate J u d i c ia ry Com m ittee, h e l l o, my name  i s  
Heather Aust i n  and  I am  the Executive D i rector for Tobacco F ree North  Dakota . Tha n k  you so 
m uch fo r you r  t ime t h is morn ing .  The m iss ion of  Tobacco F ree No rt h  Da kota i s  to imp rove a nd  
protect t h e  pub l i c hea lth  of a l l  North Da kotans b y  red uc i ng the  serious  hea l th a nd econom i c  
consequences of  tobacco use, the state's n u m be r  one  ca use of  p reventa b l e  d i sease and  deat h .  

Today I a m  he re t o  encou rage a Do  Pass on H B  1477, or  t he  b i l l  t o  enact a pena lty for t he  
se l l i ng o f  e lectron i c  n i cot i ne  de l ivery systems  ( E N DS) to  m i nors .  I 'm a lso he re to  s upport t he  
adopt ion o f  a n  amendment to  t h i s  b i l l  t o  c l ass ify E N DS prod ucts as  tobacco p rod u cts to 
encourage mon itori ng, data co l l ection,  a nd  enfo rcement of exist i ng  law. TFN D  is  excited to 
work with ou r  Legis l ators to strengthen  North  Da kota tobacco p revent ion po l i cy th rough  H B  
1477 .  We ca n beg in to stem the t ide i n  what the FDA i s  now ca l l i ng a n  "ep idem ic" fo r o u r  youth . 

Wh i l e  we have much to lea rn a bout these new e l ectron i c  smok ing devi ces, the  evidence i s  a l ready 
c lea r that it i s  unsafe for young people to use e-ciga rettes o r  a ny other  p rod uct conta i n i ng 
n icoti ne .  As stated by the Su rgeon Genera l , "E-c iga rette use poses a s ign if ica nt - and  avo ida b l e  -
hea lth r i sk to young peop le  i n  the Un ited States. Bes ides i ncreas i ng the poss i b i l ity of add i ct ion a n d  
long-term ha rm t o  b ra i n  deve lopment a nd  resp i ratory hea lth ,  e-ciga rette use i s  assoc iated with the 
use of  other tobacco prod ucts that  ca n do even more damage to the body. " i .  

Accord i ng  to  a su rvey by  Truth I n it iat ive, 63% of  J U U L  users don't know that J U U L  a lways conta i n s  
n i coti ne, even though th i s  i s  the  case . N icot i ne  is derived from tobacco and  i s  a h igh ly add i ct ive 
s ubsta nce ha rmfu l to youth b ra i n  deve lopment, and  J U U L's own website states it is de rived from 
the tobacco p l ant .  

I wou ld  a l so l i ke to po int out that the tobacco compan ies know that a lmost a l l  n ew tobacco users 
beg in  the i r  add i ct ion as k ids, i n  fact 90% of da i ly add i cted users sta rted by the age of 18 .  These 
u n regu l ated a nd u ntaxed e lectron i c  prod ucts make it eas ier  for beg i n ners - prima ri l y  ou r  k ids  - to 
t ry the p rod uct and  u lt imately become add i cted . With e l ectron i c  p rod uct use at ep idemic  l eve l s  
for ou r  youth, and  with new prod ucts and  f lavors be ing i ntrod uced at a l ightn i ng  pace, we ca n't 
r i sk  wa it i ng fo r nat i ona l  po l icy or  for FDA regu lat ions .  

\ 



• That is why acknowledging ENDS as tobacco is so importa nt . Cu rrent ly these prod ucts a re not 
subject to tobacco l i cens i ng, comp l i ance checks, exist i ng tobacco regu l at ions, o r  cons istent 
mea n i ngfu l data co l l ect ion . By adopti ng an amendment to ca l l  them what they a re, tobacco, we 
ca n fu rther  our understa nd ing of how these p rod ucts move th rough our state and how they affect 
ou r  c it i zens .  

Mu lt i p l e  C ity Ord i nances across North Da kota a l ready c l assify e-ciga rette/va pe p rod ucts as a 
tobacco p roduct, due to the i r  n i cot i ne content .  By adopt ing th i s  c l assifi cat ion ,  the rest of the state 
wi l l  be ca ught up, the p l ay ing fie ld wi l l  be leve l fo r bus i nesses, a nd  "bad actors" wi l l  have fewer 
ways to c i rcu mvent laws mea nt to regu l ate and mon itor tobacco usage in No rth Da kota . 

Aga i n ,  t ha n k  you for th i s  t ime  i n  front  of you ,  Cha i rwoman  La rson ,  a n d  t he  Com m ittee .  I t  i s  
ve ry app rec iated . P lease vote Do Pass  on  HB 1477 .  

May I ta ke a ny questions?  

Heathe r  Aust i n  
Execut ive D i rector, Tobacco F ree North  Da kota 

• Ce l l :  701-527-2811  
heather@tfnd . o rg 
www.tfnd . o rg 

-

i .  H HS, Know the R isks :  E-Ciga rettes & Young People, accessed Ma rch 15, 2018 at https ://e
c iga rettes . su  rgeongenera I .gov /knowther isks . htm I . 
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Photo of actua l  e-j u ices and  e l ectron i c  tobacco devices confi scated d u ri ng the  fa l l  

of the 2018-2019 schoo l  yea r at a North Da kota H igh Schoo l .  
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Photos of the  J U U L  system - one  of 

the  most popu l a r  ways youth use 

e l ectron i c  tobacco p rod ucts . J U U L  

now accou nts for nea r ly 70% of the  

ma rket . 



Tobacco use is STlll an issue in ND, especiallv 
among vouth ... � 3 

• NEW PRODUCTS MORE FLAVORS 
H\3 I L-fl l  
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Big Tobacco and the vaping indust ry are constant ly try ing to come up with new ways to target youth.  Between flavors and 
h igh tech/s leek designs its no wonder these products appeal to k ids .  The i r  latest products have been showing up in  
B ismarck/Burle igh County schoo ls .  These products CONTAI N N ICOTI N E  wh ich is  h igh ly addict ive and harmfu l to youth 
bra in development. Accord ing to a recent study by TRUTH In it iat ive, 63% of youth d id NOT know that one JUUL pod 
conta ins the same amount of n icotine equa l  to one pack of cigarettes or 200 puffs . 1 ·4·6 

Mat can Norlh Dakota do 11 protect vollhil 
� Increase the  p ri ce on ALL 
.., tobacco products i nc lud ing • Ban flavored tobacco 

products 
e-c igarettes, vapes, and MODS 
Fund tobacco prevent ion and 
contro l  p rog rams  at l evels  
recommended by the CDC 

I mp lement M u lt i  Un it 
Hous ing Smoke-Free 
Po l icy 

� Ma inta i n  the N D  
\':l!,/ Smoke-Free Law 

� Ra ise the lega l  age to 
� purchase tobacco to 21 
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C-Tobacco Free 
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P .O . Box 3237 1, · \ 9 · ' '\ 

March 19, 2019 
1 1 :00 am CST 
Senate J u d ic i a ry Com m ittee fo r the 66th N D  Legis l at ive Assemb ly 

Bismarck, N D  58502 
701-751-0229 
www.tfnd .org 

Cha i rwoman  La rson, a nd members of the  Senate J u d i c i a ry Com m ittee, he l l o, my n ame  is  
H eather Aust i n and I am the Executive D i rector for Tobacco Free No rt h  Da kota . Aga i n ,  t h ank  
you  so  much  for you r  t ime  t h i s  morn i ng .  

TFN D  and  many other  organ i zat ions have a l l  s i gned a forma l  Reso l ut ion to  Ra ise North Dakota's 
Tobacco Tax. 

Th is  Reso l ut ion has been s igned by: The Fa rgo-Cass Pub l i c  Hea lth Board of Hea lth ,  the G rand  Forks 
Boa rd of Hea lth, G rand  Forks Tobacco Free Coa l it ion ,  B i smarck Tobacco Free Coa l it ion ,  Cava l i e r  Cou nty 
Hea lth D i str i ct, City-County Hea lth Distri ct Boa rd of Hea lth,  Ne l son-G riggs D istr ict Hea lth U n it, Centra l 
Va l ley Hea lth  D istr ict, Sargent County D ist rict Hea lth, No rth Dakota Pub l i c  Hea lth  Assoc iat ion,  a nd  
Tobacco F ree North Dakota . 

The Reso lut ion reads as fo l l ows : 

Whereas, accord i ng to the 2014 US Surgeon Genera l' s  Report, i n creas ing tobacco exc ise taxes have 
proven h igh ly effect ive in prevent ing in it iat ion among youth, reduc ing  tobacco use by promot ing 
cessat ion among cu rrent users, d i scourag ing re l a pse among former users, and  reduc ing  consum pt ion 
a mong those who conti nue  to use tobacco i ; and 

Whereas, tobacco use rema ins  North Dakota's lead ing p reventab le  cause of death,  k i l l i ng  more peop le 
than a lcoho l ,  AI DS, ca r crashes, i l l ega l d rugs, mu rders, and su ic ides comb ined i i ; a nd  

Whereas, 1 1 .7% of youth i n  North Dakota smoke i i i, and  300 North Dakota ch i l d ren ( unde r  18 )  become 
new da i ly smokers each yea r i i i, of whom more than  14,000 w i l l  d i e  p remature ly because of  th i s  
add i ct ion i i i ; and  

Whereas, 22 .3% of youth i n  North Dakota u se  e lectron i c  n icot i ne  de l ivery systems ( E N DS) iv, othe rwise 
known as e-ciga rettes, of whom many wi l l  deve lop a l ife long add ict ion to n i cot i ne/tobacco p roducts, 
resu lt i ng in the hea lth costs re lated to such ;  and  

Whereas, E N DS have l itt le  to  no regu lation a rou nd  content, f lavori ngs, and  ma rket ing appea l i ng to 

-
youth, and  stea lth-use products and  tact ics advert ised to youth; a nd  



Whereas, E N DS a re not cu rrent ly c l assif ied as  tobacco products i n  North Dakota even though they -del iver n icot i ne  i n  the  same  way for the same pu rpose as other  tobacco products; a nd  

Whereas, E N DS a re not cu rrent ly approved by  t he  FDA as a cessat ion device, a nd  

Whereas, 19 .8% ( 1 15, 100) o f  adu lts i n  North Da kota smoke i i i  and near ly 1,000 North Da kota ns i i i  wi l l  
d i e  each yea r  from smok ing and  smok i ng-rel ated d i sease, i nc l ud ing  27% of cancer deaths i n  N D  that 
a re attr i buted to tobacco usev; a nd  

Whereas, tobacco u se  i n  North Dakota imposes economic  burden, with smoki ng-caused d i rect 
hea l thca re costs amou nt ing to $326 m i l l ion  each yea r i i i, smok ing-caused productiv ity losses 
approximat i ng  $232 .6  m i l l i on  a nnua l ll, and  each househo ld paying $768 per yea r  in state and federa l  
taxes from smok i ng-ca used govern ment expend itu resvi , and 

Whereas, each yea r, the North Dakota govern ment Med ica id payments d i rect ly re lated to tobacco use 
a re $56 .9 m i l l i on  vi ; and  

Whereas, the cu rrent c iga rette t ax  of  $0.44 pe r  pack i i i , p ipe tobacco and ciga r t ax  at 28% of  the  
who lesa le  pu rchase pr ice v i i , and  snuff tax at $0.60 per ounce vi i, ra nk ing North Dakota one of the fou r  
cheapest tobacco states i n  the nat ion i i i  i s  da ngerous to  our  state's c it izens; a nd  

Whereas, t he  leg is l at ive body i n  No rth Dakota ha s  not enacted leg is lat ion to  i ncrease our  state's • 
tobacco taxes s ince 1993; and  defeated leg is lat ion as recently as 2015; and  
Whereas, the Tobacco I ndu stry spends  $38 . 2  m i l l ion each year  ma rket ing i n  N Dvi ; a nd  

Whereas, t h i s  reso l ut ion add resses commerc ia l  tobacco, wh ich is d iffe rent from trad it iona l  tobacco 
used in Amer ican I nd i a n  sp i r itu a l  a nd  ceremon ia l  practices; 

Now therefore be it resolved, Tobacco Free North Da kota supports i ncreas ing the tobacco tax in North 
Dakota as a proven way to prevent youth tobacco i n it iat ion, encou rage a reduct ion of adu lt tobacco 
use, reduce hea lth  ca re costs, and  p rovide an overa l l  benefit to pub l i c  hea lth . i Further, Tobacco F ree 
North Dakota endorses the 2019 leg is l ative effort to raise North Dakota's ciga rette tax by $ 1 . 50 for a 
tota l  tax of $ 1 .94 per pack and  a l l  other  tobacco products by a proport iona l  amount, and  to i nc l ude  
c lass ify ing E N DS as  tobacco products so  they a re taxed as such . 

Aga in ,  tha n k  you fo r th i s  t ime  i n  front of you, Cha i rwoman  La rson and the Com m ittee .  

Heather  Aust i n  
Execut ive D i rector, Tobacco F ree North  Da kota 
Ce l l :  701-527-2811  
heather@tfnd . o rg 
www.tfnd .org 
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i U .S .  Department of Hea lth and Human  Services. (2014) .  The health consequences of smoking - 50 years of progress. A 
report of the Surgeon General. Retrieved from https://www.surgeongenera l .gov/l i bra ry/reports/50-years-of-progress/50-
yea rs-of-progress-by-section . html  
i i  Ca mpa ign for Tobacco Free Kids. (2018, J une  8). The toll of tobacco in the United States . Retrieved from 
https://www.tobaccofreek ids .org/prob lem/to l l -us 
i i i  Ca mpa ign for Tobacco-Free K ids .  (2018, June  7). Key State-Specific Tobacco Data and Rankings. Retrieved from 
https :// www. to ba ccofree k ids .  org/ assets/fa ctsh eets/ 017 6. pdf 
iv Centers for Disease Control and Prevention .  ( n . d . ) .  High School Youth Behavior Risk Survey North Dakota 2015 and United 
States 2015 Results . Retrieved from 
https://nccd .cdc .gov/youthon l i ne/App/Resu lts.a spx?TT=G&OUT=0&S ID=HS&QI D=QQ&L ID=N D&YI D=2015&L I D2=XX&Y ID2=  
2015&COL=&ROW1=&ROW2=&HT=QQ&LCT=&FS=Sl&FR=Rl&FG=G l&FSL=&FRL=&FGL=&PV=&Cl=ND2015&C2=XX2015& 
QP=G&DP=l&VA=Cl&CS=N&SYI D=&EYI D=&SC=DEFAU LT&SO=ASC&pf=l&TST=True 
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Senate Jud ic iary Committee 
Tuesday, March 19, 2019 

11 :00 a .m .  
Chairman Diane La rson 

Ft .  Linco ln  
H B  1477 

My name  is Deb Kn uth and  I am the Gove rnment Re lat io ns  D i rector fo r the North Da kota Ame rica n 
Ca ncer Society Ca nce r  Actio n Network. 
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The America n Ca ncer Society Cancer Act ion Network (ACS CAN ), the nonp rofit, non-pa rt isa n advocacy 
affi l iate of the Ame rica n Ca ncer Society advocates fo r p ub l ic po l ic ies that  red uce death a nd  suffe ri ng 
from ca nce r. ACS CAN strong ly supports regu l a r  a nd s ign ifi cant  tax i n c reases on  ciga rettes a nd a l l  othe r  

• 
tobacco p rod ucts, i n c l ud i ng e lectron ic smok ing devices .  We recommend  the fo l lowing :  

• 

Defi n it ions for taxing e-cigarettes :  

"E lectro n ic smok ing device" means any device that can be used to de l ive r ae rosol ized o r  va po rized 
n icoti ne to the pe rso n i nha l i ng  from the device, i n c l ud i ng, but  not l im ited to, an e-ciga rette, e-ciga r, e
p i pe, va pe pen o r e-hooka h .  E l ectron i c  smok ing device i n c l udes  a ny component, pa rt, or a ccesso ry of 
such a device, whether o r  not sold sepa rate ly, a nd  i nc l udes  a ny su bsta nce intended to be ae roso l ized o r  
va po r ized d u ring t h e  use o f  t h e  device. E l ect ron i c  smok ing dev ice does not i n c l ude  a ny batte ry o r  
batte ry cha rger when  so ld sepa rate ly. I n  add it ion ,  e lectron i c  smok ing device does  no t  i n c l ude  d rugs, 
devices, or comb i nat ion p rod ucts a utho rized fo r sale by the U .S .  Food and  D rug Ad m i n istrat ion ,  as those 
terms a re defi ned i n  the Fede ra l Food, D rug and  Cosmetic Act. 

"Tobacco p roduct" means  a ny p rod uct that  is made  from or de rived from tobacco, or that conta i n s  
n icot i ne, t h a t  is i ntended fo r h uman  co n sumpt ion o r  i s  l i ke ly t o  be  consumed,  whethe r  smoked, heated, 
chewed, a bsorbed, d isso lved, i n h a led o r  i ngested by a ny othe r  means, i n c l ud i ng, but  not l im ited to,  a 
ciga rette, a ciga r, p i pe tobacco, chewing tobacco, snuff, o r  snus .  "Tobacco p rod uct" a l so mea ns  
e lectron i c  smok ing  devices a nd  a ny com ponent o r  accesso ry used  i n  the  co nsumpt ion  of a tobacco 
p rod uct, such as  fi lte rs, ro l l i ng papers, p i pes, a nd su bsta nces used in e lectron ic smok ing devices, 
whether  o r  not they conta i n  n icot ine .  "Tobacco p roduct" does not i n c l ude  d rugs, devices, o r  
com b i nat ion products a uthorized fo r sa le  b y  t h e  U .S .  Food a nd D rug Ad m i n istrat ion ,  a s  those terms a re 
defined i n  the Federa l  Food, D rug and  Cosmetic Act . 

ACS CAN su pports i n c l ud i ng e-ciga rettes i n  the defi n it ion of to bacco p roducts and  tax ing them at a rate 
pa ra l l e l  to the tax on ciga rettes a nd a l l  othe r  tobacco p roducts .  We a l so u rge the Com m ittee to cons i de r  

\ 
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i n c reas ing  North Da kota ' s  tax on  ciga rettes by $ 1 .50 per  pack with a n  eq u iva lent  i ncrease i n  the  tax on  � - l 9 · l q 
a l l  othe r  tobacco p rod ucts, i n c l ud i ng e-ciga rettes .  No rth  Da kota has  not i n c reased the ciga rette tax s i nce 
1993, a n d  it is cu rrent ly o n ly at $ .44 per pack com pa red to the nat io n a l  ave rage tax of $ 1 .79 per  pack, 
and  e-ciga rettes a re not cu rrent ly taxed as  tobacco p roducts at a l l  a nd  they a re be ing used by youth at 
ep id em ic l eve l s .  

Tha n k  you fo r a l lowing me to testify. Are the re a ny q uest ions? 



J U U L §� 
Chairwoman Diane Larson and Members of the Judiciary Committee, 

On behalf of JUUL Labs, thank - you for the opportunity to submit 

testimony in support of HB 1477 .  

JUUL Labs' mission i s  to  improve the lives of the world 's  one bi l l ion 

adult  smokers by eliminating cigarettes .- This mi -ss ion i s  driven by the fact that 

smoking is the number one cause of preventable death worldwide .  In the 

United States alone, smoking kills app-rmdmately 480,000  people every year. 

We share a common goal with policymakers, regulators, parents, s choo l  

officials , and community stakeholders - prevent the use of tobacco and 

vapor products, including JUUL, by. America's youth. We are committed to 

stopping youth access of JUUL products, and no young person or non-nicotine 

user should ever try JUUL. 

In November of 2 0 1 8, we bega_n jmplem�nting a number of signifi cant 

voluntary actions, as outl ined in our Action Plan, to address youth access ,  

I .  
JUUL.com 

560 20th ST., SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94107  
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appeal, and use  of  JUUL products. This included a maj or reset of  how JUUL  

Labs markets and  sel ls its products, requirint automated sales contro l s  to 

l imit the purchase of  certain flavored products to adults 2 1  + .  Currently, we 

only sell these  products through our ecbmmerce platform (JUUL.com) ,  where 

we uti l ize sophisticated automated technology, supported by third-parties ,  to 

ensure purchasers are 21 + and to prevent bulk purchases .  

We also e l iminated our U .S .  Facebook and I nstagram accounts, and are 

develop ing new technology to further l imit youth access and use .  We are 

committed to working with lawmake·rs, the Surgeon General, FDA, state 

Attorneys General, local municipalit ies, and community organizations as a 

transparent and responsible partner 1:-n this  effort. We be l ieve that these  

6·, 1 1 �  / , ·k H-G I L/ 7  7 
efforts combined with increasing the minim.um age tu purchase tobacco ana 

V.aJ:)f)F p1 ad acts to 21 ,  will drastically reduce you.th access o f  JUUL products . 

At JUUL Labs, we are focused on creating an alternative to combustible 

cigarettes that provides an off ramp for adult smokers. We recognize that we 

cannot do th is  without also actively working to pass proven legislative 

JUUL.com 

560 20th ST., SAN FRANCISCO,  CA 94107  



J U U L §� 

-¼f 5  
H12> lYll  
1, · \ '1 · \  't 

measures that prevent youth from using tobacco products, including JUUL. We 

are actively engaged in many states and _j urisdictions to support and pass 

Tobacco 2 1  legislation .  We applaud the state for creating stiffer penalties  on 

those  that furnish these products to min_ors .  WeJook forward to working with 

you in the future to curb youth usage in the state. 

C.' o , I'" v./J j W")-l (Y\ · ,  ) ; ,lir0.&, 1'� 
Thank you. "V' - , 

JUUL.com 

5 60 2 0th ST., SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94107  



S T R E N G T H E N I N G  R E T A I L  C O M P L I A N C E  

S O N G O I N G  I A l o n g  with esca l a t i n g  p e n a l t ies  a g a inst reta i l e rs ca u g ht b y  the 

F DA, w e ' re a l so ste p p i n g  up o u r own m o n ito r i n g .  W e  a re q u a d ru p l i n g  o u r  

" secret  sho p p e r" p ro g ra m of  reta i l e rs t o  e n s u re th a t  th e y  w i l l  n ot se l l  o u r  

p ro d u ct t o  m i n o rs o r  m a ke b u l k  s a l e s  th a t  m i g ht f i n d  th e i r  w a y  into t h e  h a n d s  

o f  m i n o rs .  

S T O P P I N G  U N A U T H O R I Z E D  O N L I N E S A L E S  

S O N G O I N G  I W e  h a v e  f i l e d  com p l a ints  i n  th e U n it e d  States  I n te r n a t i o n a l  

T ra d e  C o m m iss ion  ( ITC)  a g a i n st m o re th a n  tw o - d oz e n  ent it ie s  b a se d  a ro u n d  

t h e  w o r l d  f o r  s e l l i n g  co p ycat  J U U L  p ro d u cts a n d  " J U U L  com p a t i b l e "  p o d s  

th a t  a re often m a rketed in  k i d - a p p e a l i n g  f l a vo rs, a n d  w i l l  cont i n u e  t o  g o  

a fte r these  m a n u f a ctu r e rs f o r  i n f r i n g i n g  on  o u r  inte l l e ctu a l - p ro p e rty r i g hts .  

D E V E L O P I N G  N E W T E C H N O L O G Y  T O  T R A C K  P R O D U C T S  A N D  

F U R T H E R  L I M I T  Y O U T H  A C C E S S  A N D  U S E  

S O N G O I N G  I W e  a re b u i l d i n g  out  a n  i n d iv id u a l - d evice t r a ce a b i l i ty syste m 

to t r a ck J U U L  p ro d ucts th ro u g hout  the d i str i b ut ion ch a n n e l , e n a b l i n g  us  to 

i d e n t i fy  a n d  p e n a l ize  b a d - a cto r reta i l e rs t h a t  se l l  to y o uth .  
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S T O P P I N G  F L A V O R E D  J U U L P O D  S A L E S  T O  T R A D I T I O N A L  R E T A I L  

V C O M  F' I E T .  ;, J U U L  La b s  sto p p e d  sa les of fou r f l a v o r e d  J U U L p o d s  -

Cucu m b e r, F r u it, C r e m e  a n d  M a n g o  - to m o re th a n  9 0 , 0 0 0  reta i l  sto res  in  

N o v e m b e r, re str icti n g  the p ro d u cts to o u r  2 1  + a g e - g a t e d  w e b s i te .  

E N H A N C I N G  O U R  2 1 + E C O M M E R C E  P L A T F O R M  

/ C O M P L E T E D  I W e  h a ve f u rth e r  e n h a nced o u r  i n d u st ry - l e a d i n g  o n l i n e  

a g e - v e r i f icat ion  syste m ,  a d d i n g  two - f a cto r a uthent icat ion  a n d  f a c i a l 

reco g n i t ion tech n o l o g y  t o  v e r i fy  p u rch a se rs a re a t  l e a st 2 1 . 

S T R E N G T H E N I N G  R E T A I L  C O M P L I A N C E  

v C O M P L E T E D  I W e  h a v e  esta b l i s h e d  esca l a ti n g  p e n a l t ies  a g a in st reta i l e rs 

th a t  f a i l  F DA a g e - v e r i f i cat ion  com p l i a n ce checks, i nc l u d i n g  p otenti a l  

p e r m a n e n t  s a l e s  b a ns .  

S T O P P I N G  U N A U T H O R I Z E D  O N L I N E  S A L E S  

v C O M P L E T E C, Th i s  y e a r a l one ,  J U U L  La bs  h a s  w o r k e d  to r e m o v e  m o re 

th a n  2 5 , 0 0 0  th i r d - p a rty l i st i n g s  of J U U L  p r o d u cts a n d  counte rfeits .  

E X I T I N G  S O C I A L  M E D I A  

C O t-·\ P L  E T  W e  h a v e  e l i m i n a t e d  o u r  U . S . - b a se d  F a c e b o o k  a n d  

l n sta g r a m  a ccou nts a n d  rest r icte d the u se o f  Tw itte r t o  n o n - p rom otio n a l 

co m m u n icat ions .  



HB 1 477 PROPOSED AMENDMENT 

Page 1 ,  after line 1 2  insert "SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 57-3 6-0 1 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows : 

57-36-01. Definitions. 

As used in this chapter, unless the context or subject matter otherwise requires :  

:tr I 
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1 .  "Chewing tobacco" means any leaf tobacco that is intended to be placed in the mouth. 

2. "Cigar" means any roll of tobacco wrapped in tobacco . 

3 .  "Cigarette" means any roll for smoking made wholly or in part of tobacco or processed 
tobacco and encased in any material except tobacco. "Cigarette" also means any product 
of a cigarette-making machine . 

4 .  "Cigarette-making machine" means a machine used for commercial purposes to 
process tobacco into a roll or tube, formed or made from any material other than tobacco, 
at a production rate of more than five rolls or tubes per minute . 

5 .  "Consumer" means any person who has title to or possession of cigarettes, cigars, pipe 
tobacco, or other tobacco products in storage, for use or other consumption in this state . 

6 .  "Dealer" includes any person other than a distributor who is engaged in the business of 
selling cigarettes, cigarette papers, cigars, pipe tobacco, or other tobacco products, or any 
product of a cigarette-making machine . 

7 .  "Distributor" includes any person engaged in the business of producing or 
manufacturing cigarettes, cigarette papers, cigars, pipe tobacco, or other tobacco 
products, or importing into this state cigarettes, cigarette papers, cigars, pipe tobacco, or 
other tobacco products, for the purpose of distribution and sale thereof to dealers and 
retailers . 

8 .  "Electronic smoking device " means a nonlighted, noncombustible device that employs 
a mechanical heating element, battery, or circuit, regardless of shape or size, to 
produce aerosolized or vaporized nicotine for inhalation into the body of an individual, 
including a device manufactured, distributed, marketed, or sold as an e - cigarette, 
e - cigar, e - pipe, e - hookah, vape pen, or any other similar product with any other 
product name or descriptor. 

9. "Licensed dealer" means a dealer licensed under the provisions of this  chapter. 

\ 



.uL "Licensed distributor" means a distributor licensed under the provisions of this 
chapter. 

lL. "Other tobacco products" means snuff and chewing tobacco. 

11,_ "Person" means any individual , firm, fiduciary, partnership, corporation, limited 
liability company, trust, or association however formed. 

11. "Pipe tobacco" means any processed tobacco that, because of its appearance, type, 
packaging, or labeling, is suitable for use and likely to be offered to, or purchased by, 
consumers as tobacco to be smoked in a pipe. 

1.±: "Sale" or "sell" applies to gifts, exchanges, and barter .  

�"Snuff' means any finely cut, ground, or powdered tobacco that is intended to be 
placed in the mouth. 

12.c "Storage" means any keeping or retention of cigarettes, cigars, pipe tobacco, or other 
tobacco products for use or consumption in this state . 

1 7 . "Tobacco product" means any product that is made from or derived from tobacco, or 
that contains nicotine whether natural or synthetic, and is  intended for human 
consumption or is likely to be consumed, whether smoked, heated, chewed, absorbed, 
dissolved, inhaled, or ingested by any other means . The term includes a cigarette, cigar, 
pipe tobacco, chewing tobacco, snuff, snus, an electronic smoking device, and a nicotine 
liquid container as defined in section 1 2 . 1 -3 1 -03 .2 .  The term does not include a drug, 
device, or combination product, as those terms are defined in the federal Food, Drug and 
Cosmetic Act [52 Stat . 1 040; 2 1  U .S .C .  3 0 1  et seq.], approved for sale by the United 
States food and drug administration. 

� "Use" means the exercise of any right or power incidental to the ownership or 
possession of cigarettes, cigars, pipe tobacco, or other tobacco products .  
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19.0928.02001 
Title . 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Bakke 

February 20, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSE D HOUSE B ILL NO. 1477 

Page 1, line 2, after the semicolon insert "to amend and reenact subsection 1 of section 
12.1-31-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to prohibiting the sale of 
tobacco to minors ; "  

Page 1, after line 4 ,  insert :  

"SECTION 1 . AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of  section 12.1-31-03 of  the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1. a. It is an infractiona class B misdemeanor for any person to sell or 
furnish to a minor, or procure for a minor, cigarettes, cigarette papers, 
cigars, snuff, tobacco in any other form in which it may be utilized for 
smoking or chewing, electronic smoking devices, or alternative 
nicotine products . As used in this subdivision, "sell" includes 
dispensing from a vending machine under the control of the actor. 

b .  I t  is an infraction for any person to display or offer for sale cigarettes, 
cigarette papers, cigars, snuff, tobacco in any other form in which it 
may be utilized for smoking or chewing, electronic smoking devices, 
or alternative nicotine products through a self-service display. This 
subdivision does not apply to a :  

Renumber accordingly 

(1) Vending machine or other coin-operated machine that is 
permitted under section 12.1-31-03.1; or 

(2) Self-service display that is located in a tobacco specialty store. "  

Page No. 1 19.0928.02001 
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Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Counci l  staff for 
Senator D. Larson 

March 21, 2019 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1477 

Page 1, l ine 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the b i l l  with "for an Act to amend and 
reenact subsections 1 and 9 of section 12.1-31-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, 
re lating to prohibit ing the sale of tobacco to minors; and to provide a penalty. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA : 

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 12.1-31-03 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

1. a. It is an infractiona class B misdemeanor for any person to sel l  or 
furnish to a minor, or procure for a minor, cigarettes, cigarette papers, 
cigars, snuff, tobacco in any other form in which it may be uti l ized for 
smoking or chewing, electronic smoking devices, e-l iquid, or 
alternative nicotine products. As used in this subdivision, "sell" 
includes dispensing from a vending machine under the control of the 
actor. 

b. It is an infraction for any person to display or offer for sale cigarettes, 
cigarette papers, cigars, snuff, tobacco in any other form in which it 
may be util ized for smoking or chewing, electronic smoking devices, 
or alternative n icotine products through a self-service display. This 
subdivision does not apply to a :  

(1) Vending machine or other coin-operated machine that is 
permitted under section 12.1-31-03.1 ;  or 

(2) Self-service d isplay that is located in a tobacco specialty store. 

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Subsection 9 of section 12.1-31-03 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

9. As used in this section: 

a. "Alternative nicotine product" means any noncombustible product 
containing n icotine that is intended for human consumption, whether 
chewed, absorbed, dissolved, or ingested by any other means. The 
term does not include any cigarette, cigar, snuff, tobacco in any other 
form in which it may be uti l ized for smoking or chewing, any electronic 
smoking device, or any product regulated as a drug or device by the 
United States food and drug administration under chapter V of the 
Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act [21 U. S.C 501 et seq. ]. 

b. "E-liquid" means a l iquid composed of nicotine and other chemicals 
which is sold as a product that may be used in an electronic smoking 
device . 

c. "Electronic smoking device" means any electronic product that 
delivers nicotine or other substances to the individual inhaling from the 

Page No. 1 19. 0928.02003 



device, includ ing ,  an e lectronic cigarette , e-cigar, e-pipe,  vape pen , or 
e-hookah .  Electron ic smoking device includes any component, part, or 
accessory of such a product, whether or not sold separately. 
E lectron ic smoking device does not include drugs, devices , or 
comb inat ion products approved for sale by the Un ited States food and 
drug adm in istration ,  as those terms are defined in  the Federal Food , 
Drug and Cosmet ic Act [52 Stat . 1 040; 2 1  U .S .C .  30 1  et seq . ] .  

e:-� "Self-service d isp lay" means a d isplay that conta ins c igarettes , 
cigarette papers ,  c igars ,  snuff, tobacco in  any other form wh ich it may 
be ut i l ized for smoking or chewing , electron ic smoking devices , or 
a lternative n icotine products and is located in  an area that is openly 
access ib le to the reta i ler's customers ,  and from which customers can 
read i ly  access those products without the assistance of a 
salesperson .  A d isp lay case that holds those products beh ind locked 
doors does not constitute a self-service display. 

€he . "Tobacco specia lty store" means a reta i l  store that: 

( 1 ) Derives at least seventy-five percent of its revenue from the sale 
of c igarettes , c igarette papers ,  cigars, snuff, tobacco in  any 
other form i n  which it may be uti l ized for smoking or chewing ,  
e lectron ic smoking devices, or alternative n icot i ne products; and 

(2) Does not perm it m inors to enter the premises un less 
accompan ied by a parent or legal guard ian .  

e-:-t. "Vending mach ine" means a mach ine ,  appl iance ,  or other mechan ical 

• 

device operated by currency, token ,  debit card ,  cred it card ,  or other 

• 
means of payment that is designed or used for vend ing purposes , 
inc lud ing machines or devices that use remote contro l  l ocking 
mechan isms."  

Renumber accord ing ly  

• 
Page No .  2 1 9 . 0928 . 02003 
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19.0928.02004 
Title . 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Bakke 

April 1, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1477 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and 
enact chapter 23-50 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to regulation of the 
sale of vapor products; to amend and reenact subsections 1 and 9 of section 
12.1-31-03 and subsection 1 of section 57-39.2-11 of the North Dakota Century Code, 
relating to prohibiting the sale of tobacco products to minors and vapor product 
reporting requirements; and to provide a penalty. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 12.1-31-03 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1. a .  I t  is an infractiona class B misdemeanor for any person to sell or 
furnish to a minor, or procure for a minor, cigarettes, cigarette papers, 
cigars, snuff, tobacco in any other form in which it may be utilized for 
smoking or chewing, electronic smoking devices, e-liquid, or 
alternative nicotine products . As used in this subdivision, "sell" 
includes dispensing from a vending machine under the control of the 
actor. 

b .  I t  is an infraction for any person to display or offer for sale cigarettes, 
cigarette papers, cigars, snuff, tobacco in any other form in which it 
may be utilized for smoking or chewing, electronic smoking devices, 
or alternative nicotine products through a self-service display. This 
subdivision does not apply to a:  

(1) Vending machine or other coin-operated machine that is 
permitted under section 12.1-31-03.1; or 

(2) Self-service display that is located in a tobacco specialty store. 

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Subsection 9 of section 12.1-31-03 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

9. As used in this section: 

a. "Alternative nicotine product" means any noncombustible product 
containing nicotine that is intended for human consumption, whether 
chewed, absorbed, dissolved, or ingested by any other means. The 
term does not include any cigarette, cigar, snuff, tobacco in any other 
form in which it may be utilized for smoking or chewing, any electronic 
smoking device, or any product regulated as a drug or device by the 
United States food and drug administration under chapter V of the 
Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act [21 U . S. C  501 et seq. ]. 

b .  "E-liquid" means a liquid composed of nicotine and other chemicals 
which is sold as a product that may be used in an electronic smoking 
device. 

Page No. 1 19.0928.02004 
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c.  "Electronic smoking device" means any electronic product that 
delivers nicotine or other substances to the individual inhaling from the 
device , including, an electronic cigarette , e-cigar, e-pipe , vape pen, or 
e-hookah. Electronic smoking device includes any component , part, or 
accessory of such a product , whether or not sold separately. 
Electronic smoking device does not include drugs, devices, or 
combination products approved for sale by the United States food and 
drug administration, as those terms are defined in the Federal Food, 
Drug and Cosmetic Act [52 Stat. 1040 ; 21 U. S .C. 301 et seq . ] .  

e:-d. "Self-service display" means a display that contains cigarettes, 
cigarette papers, cigars, snuff, tobacco in any other form which it may 
be utilized for smoking or chewing, electronic smoking devices, or 
alternative nicotine products and is located in an area that is openly 
accessible to the retailer's customers, and from which customers can 
readily access those products without the assistance of a 
salesperson. A display case that holds those products behind locked 
doors does not constitute a self-service display. 

Ehe. "Tobacco specialty store" means a retail store that : 

(1) Derives at least seventy-five percent of its revenue from the sale 
of cigarettes, cigarette papers, cigars, snuff , tobacco in any 
other form in which it may be utilized for smoking or chewing, 
electronic smoking devices, or alternative nicotine products; and 

(2) Does not permit minors to enter the premises unless 
accompanied by a parent or legal guardian. 

• 

e:-t "Vending machine" means a machine, appliance, or other mechanical 
• device operated by currency, token, debit card, credit card , or other 

means of payment that is designed or used for vending purposes, 
including machines or devices that use remote control locking 
mechanisms. 

SECTION 3. Chapter 23-50 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and 
enacted as follows: 

23-50-01. Definitions. 

i " Dealer" means any person, other than a distributor, engaged in the 
business of selling vapor products in this state . 

2 .  "Distributor" means any person engaged in the business of producing or 
manufacturing vapor products or importing into this state vapor products 
for the purpose of distribution and sale to dealers . 

� "Vapor products" means an electronic smoking device or e-liquid as those 
terms are defined in section 12.1-31-03. 

23-50-02. Dealers and distributors - License requirements. 

i The attorney general shall issue the license required under this section to 
any dealer or distributor licensed under section 57-36-02. A dealer or 
distributor licensed under section 57-36-02 is not subject to the application 
and license fee provisions in this section. 
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2. A dealer or distributor that is not licensed under section 57-36-02 shall 
secure the license required under this section from the attorney general 
before engaging or continuing to engage in the business of selling vapor 
products in this state. A separate application and license is required for 
each distributor at each outlet or place of business within the state, and a 
separate dealer's license is required for each retail outlet when a person 
owns or controls more than one place of business dealing in vapor 
products. 

3. A dealer may not be granted a distributor's license unless the dealer 
performed a distributor's function for at least one year before filing an 
application for license. 

4. The application prescribed by the attorney general must include the name 
and address of the applicant, the address and place of business, the type 
of business, and other information required by the attorney general. 

5. Each application for a distributor's license must be accompanied by a fee 
of twenty-five dollars. A distributor's license does not authorize the holder 
to make retail sales. 

6. Each application for a dealer's license must be accompanied by a fee of 
fifteen dollars. 

7. Each license issued must be prominently displayed on the premises 
covered by the license. 

§.,. An annual license issued under this section is valid from July first through 
June thirtieth of the following year unless sooner revoked by the attorney 
general or unless the business for which the license was issued is 
transferred, in either of which cases the holder of the license shall 
immediately return the license to the attorney general. 

23-50-03. Revocation of license. 

1.,_ The attorney general may revoke the license of any dealer or distributor for 
failure to comply with any of the regulations prescribed by the attorney 
general or for a violation of section 12.1-31-03 . 

.£. A dealer or distributor may not sell vapor products while that person's 
license is revoked. 

3. A new license may not be issued to a dealer or distributor for one year 
following the revocation of a previous license. 

23-50-04. Penalties for violation of chapter. 

Any person who violates any provision of this chapter is guilty of a class A 
misdemeanor. 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 57-39.2-11 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1. Except as provided in section 57-39.2-12 for monthly reports and 
payments, on or before the last day of the month following the close of the 
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first quarterly period, and on or before the last day of the month following 
each subsequent quarterly period of three months, the retailer shall make 
out a return for the preceding quarterly period in the form and manner as 
may be prescribed by the commissioner, showing the gross receipts of the 
retailer, the amount of the tax for the period covered by the return, and any 
further information as the commissioner may require to enable the retailer 
correctly to compute and collect the tax herein levied. A retailer licensed to 
sell vapor products under chapter 23-50 shall include with the return 
required under this section a report, in the form and manner prescribed by 
the commissioner, containing information on purchases and sales of vapor 
products. The commissioner, upon request by any retailer and a proper 
showing of the necessity therefor, may grant unto the retailer an extension 
of time not to exceed thirty days for making a return. If the extension is 
granted to any retailer, the time in which the retailer is required to make 
payment as provided for in section 57-39.2-12 must be extended for the 
same period but interest must be charged upon the amount of the deferred 
payment at the rate of twelve percent per annum from the date the tax 
would have been due if the extension had not been granted to the date the 
tax is paid." 

Renumber accordingly 
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